
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Licensing 
Committee 
 
 
 
Mon 25th Jan 
2010 
7.00 pm 
 
Committee Room 2 
Town Hall 
Redditch 

Public Document Pack



Access to Information - Your Rights 
 

The Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 
1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend 
Local Authority meetings 
and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the 
Freedom of Information Act 
2000, has further broadened 
these rights, and limited 
exemptions under the 1985 
Act. 

Your main rights are set out 
below:- 

• Automatic right to attend 
all Council and 
Committee meetings 
unless the business 
would disclose 
confidential or “exempt” 
information. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
agenda and public reports 
at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
minutes of the Council 
and its Committees (or 
summaries of business  

 

undertaken in private) for 
up to six years following a 
meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
lists of background 
papers used in the 
preparation of public 
reports. 

• Access, upon request, to 
the background papers 
on which reports are 
based for a period of up 
to four years from the 
date of the meeting. 

• Access to a public 
register stating the names 
and addresses and 
electoral areas of all 
Councillors with details of 
the membership of all 
Committees etc. 

• A reasonable number of 
copies of agenda and 
reports relating to items to 
be considered in public 
must be made available 
to the public attending 
meetings of the Council 
and its Committees etc. 

• Access to a list specifying 
those powers which the 
Council has delegated to its 
Officers indicating also the 
titles of the Officers 
concerned. 

• Access to a summary of the 
rights of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council and 
its Committees etc. and to 
inspect and copy 
documents. 

• In addition, the public now 
has a right to be present 
when the Council 
determines “Key Decisions” 
unless the business would 
disclose confidential or 
“exempt” information. 

• Unless otherwise stated, all 
items of business before the 
Executive Committee are 
Key Decisions.  

• (Copies of Agenda Lists are 
published in advance of the 
meetings on the Council’s 
Website: 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to 

exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact  
Denise Sunman  

Committee Support Services  
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel:  Fax: (01527) 65216 

e.mail: committee@redditchbc.gov.uk                Minicom: 595528 
 



Welcome to today’s meeting. 
Guidance for the Public 
 
 
Agenda Papers 

The Agenda List at the front 
of the Agenda summarises 
the issues to be discussed 
and is followed by the 
Officers’ full supporting 
Reports. 
 
Chair 

The Chair is responsible for 
the proper conduct of the 
meeting. Generally to one 
side of the Chair is the 
Committee Support Officer 
who gives advice on the 
proper conduct of the 
meeting and ensures that 
the debate and the 
decisions are properly 
recorded.  On the Chair’s 
other side are the relevant 
Council Officers.  The 
Councillors (“Members”) of 
the Committee occupy the 
remaining seats around the 
table. 
 
Running Order 

Items will normally be taken 
in the order printed but, in 
particular circumstances, the 
Chair may agree to vary the 
order. 
 
Refreshments : tea, coffee 
and water are normally 
available at meetings - 
please serve yourself. 
 

 
Decisions 

Decisions at the meeting will 
be taken by the Councillors 
who are the democratically 
elected representatives. 
They are advised by 
Officers who are paid 
professionals and do not 
have a vote. 
 
Members of the Public 

Members of the public may, 
by prior arrangement, speak 
at meetings of the Council or 
its Committees.  Specific 
procedures exist for Appeals 
Hearings or for meetings 
involving Licence or 
Planning Applications.  For 
further information on this 
point, please speak to the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Special Arrangements 

If you have any particular 
needs, please contact the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Infra-red devices for the 
hearing impaired are 
available on request at the 
meeting. Other facilities may 
require prior arrangement. 
 
Further Information 

If you require any further 
information, please contact 
the Committee Support 
Officer (see foot of page 
opposite). 

Fire/ Emergency  
instructions 
 
If the alarm is sounded, 
please leave the building 
by the nearest available 
exit – these are clearly 
indicated within all the 
Committee Rooms. 
 
If you discover a fire, 
inform a member of staff 
or operate the nearest 
alarm call point (wall 
mounted red rectangular 
box).  In the event of the 
fire alarm sounding, leave 
the building immediately 
following the fire exit 
signs.  Officers have been 
appointed with 
responsibility to ensure 
that all visitors are 
escorted from the 
building. 
 
Do Not stop to collect 
personal belongings. 
 
Do Not use lifts. 
 
Do Not re-enter the 
building until told to do 
so.  
 
The emergency 
Assembly Area is on 
Walter Stranz Square. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

Declaration of Interests: 
Guidance for Councillors 
 
 
DO I HAVE A “PERSONAL INTEREST” ? 
 
• Where the item relates or is likely to affect your  registered interests 

(what you have declared on the formal Register of Interests) 
OR 
 
• Where a decision in relation to the item might reasonably be regarded as affecting your 

own well-being or financial position, or that of your family, or your close associates more 
than most other people affected by the issue, 

 
you have a personal interest. 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare the existence, and nature, of your interest and stay 
 
• The declaration must relate to specific business being decided - 

a general scattergun approach is not needed 
 
• Exception - where interest arises only because of your membership of another public 

body, there is no need to declare unless you speak on the matter. 
 
• You can vote on the matter. 
 
 
IS IT A “PREJUDICIAL INTEREST” ? 
 
In general only if:- 
 
• It is a personal interest and 
 
• The item affects your financial position (or conveys other benefits), or the position of your 

family, close associates or bodies through which you have a registered interest (or 
relates to the exercise of regulatory functions in relation to these groups) 

 
 and 
 
• A member of public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably believe the 

interest was likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare and Withdraw 
 
BUT you may make representations to the meeting before withdrawing, if the public have similar 
rights (such as the right to speak at Planning Committee). 



 
 

 
 
 
Licensing 
Committee 

 

 

 

25th January 2010 

7.00 pm 

Committee Room 2 Town Hall 

 
 

Agenda Membership: 

 Cllrs: M Braley (Chair) 
K Banks (Vice-Chair) 
M Chalk 
A Clayton 
J Cookson 
D Enderby 
J Field 
A Fry 
 

W Hartnett 
N Hicks 
D Hunt 
W King 
J Pearce 
D Smith 
D Thomas 
 

1. Apologies  To receive the apologies of any Member who is unable to 
attend this meeting. 
  

2. Declarations of Interest  To invite Councillors to declare any interests they may have 
in items on the agenda. 
  

3. Minutes  

(Pages 1 - 8)  

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Executive Committee held on  
 
(Minutes attached) 
  

4. Vehicle Safety 
Inspections / In-House 
Inspections  

(Pages 9 - 92)  

Head of Environment 

To consider changes to the way that vehicle safety 
inspections are carried out. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

5. Additional Taxi Ranks - 
Evesham Road  

(Pages 93 - 102)  

Head of Environment 

To consider proposals to provide additional and alternative 
permanent Hackney Carriage Ranks on Evesham Road. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(Various Wards)  

6. Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers - Taxis  

Head of Environment 

To consider proposals to amend the Scheme of Delegation 
to Officers relating to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
licensing. 
 
(Report to follow) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  



 
 
Licensing 
Committee  

 

 

25th January 2010 
 

7. Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers - Licensing Act 
2003  

Head of Environment 

To consider minor variations to the Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers relating to the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
(Report to follow) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

8. Committee Work 
Programme 2009/11  

(Pages 103 - 104)  

Chief Executive 

To consider the Committee Work Programme 2009/11. 
 
(Programme attached) 
 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

9. Exclusion of the Public  It may be necessary, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, to 
consider excluding the public form the meeting in relation to 
the following items of business on the grounds that exempt 
information is likely to be divulged.  It may be necessary, 
therefore, to move the following resolution: 
 
“that, under S.100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, 
as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information (Variation) Order 2006, the public may be 
excluded from the meeting for the following matters(s) 
on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
relevant paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12 (A) of the said Act, as amended.” 
 
  

  

 
 



 

 

 Chair 
 

  
 

LicensingLicensingLicensingLicensing 
Committee 

 
 

 
 

14th December 2009 
 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Michael Braley (Chair), Councillor Kath Banks (Vice-Chair) 
and Councillors A Clayton, D Enderby, J Field, W Hartnett, D Hunt and 
J Pearce 
 

 Also Present: 
 

  Inspector Ian Joseph (West Mercia Police) and Simon Wilkes 
(Worcestershire County Council – Trading Standards) 
 

 Officers: 
 

 J Cooper, C Flanagan. S Garratt and G Revans 
 

 Committee Officers: 
 

 Denise Sunman 
 
 

12. APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were received on behalf of Councillors Cookson, W King, 
Smith and Thomas. 
 

13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

14. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 
2nd November 2009 be confirmed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 
 

15. PETITION - HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARE TARIFF  
 
Mr Martin Meadows, representing the signatories of a petition 
(previously received) regarding the Hackney Carriage Fare Tariff for 
2010 was invited to outline the issues raised in the petition. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



  
 

LicensingLicensingLicensingLicensing 
Committee 

 
 
 

14th December 2009 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1)  Mr Meadows comments be noted; and  
 
2) a meeting be arranged with the Portfolio Holder, Officers 

and Mr Meadows to discuss issues raised in the petition. 
 
 

16. LICENSING ACT - ANNUAL REPORT  
 
The Licensing Manager presented her annual update report, which 
gave an overall view on the functions carried out by the Council 
under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Members were informed that the Licensing Team had developed, 
and would continue to develop, working practices and procedures in 
partnership with the Responsible Authorities and Community Safety 
to ensure that the licence trade contribute to a safe and successful 
night time economy. 
 
The Licensing Manager reported the following: 
 
1) 22 complaints had been made to environmental health 

regarding noise issues from licensed premises.  Some had 
been resolved quickly through mediations, letter or advice 
provided by Environmental Health Officers and Licensing 
Officers working together to address the issues.  Others had 
been prolonged and had required evidence gathering. 
 

2) 198 visits had been made to premises to ensure their 
compliance with legislation to control all smoking in enclosed 
public spaces, and workplaces (including shops, pubs, 
restaurants and public vehicles). 
2 complaints had been investigated for smoking on licensed 
premises. 
 

3) 1 complaint regarding Breach of Licensing Conditions 
together with 1 complaint regarding irresponsible drinks 
promotions had been investigated jointly by West Mercia 
Police and the Council. 
 

4) 40 Temporary Event Notices had been served on the 
Council.  No counter notices had been received from the 
Police.  No premises had used their quota of temporary 
events and no advice had been required regarding the need 
for a Premises Licence and no problems with using the 
system had been reported to the Council. 
 

Page 2



  
 

LicensingLicensingLicensingLicensing 
Committee 

 
 
 

14th December 2009 

 
5) Work had been carried out to integrate the Licensing Policy 

with other strategies adopted by the Council.  Conditions 
attached to Premises Licences had reflected local crime 
prevention strategies, whenever possible and the Licensing 
Manager had regularly attended meetings of the Crime and 
Disorder Reduction Partnership. 
 

6) Comment had been made on various Central Government 
transport strategies including consultation on Improving 
Access to Taxis. 
 

7) A member of the Licensing Team had attended regular 
Pubwatch meetings and would continue to do so to discuss 
and keep under review matters relating to licensing. 
 

8) The Statement of Licensing Policy would be reviewed and 
protocols would be established in partnership with the 
Responsible Authorities to enable more robust enforcement. 
 

9) A Licensing Forum had been established to discuss the 
wider issues of licensing with the Responsible Authorities on 
a quarterly basis.  A Sub Group had also been set up to 
target problem premises and co-ordinate enforcement action 
between the Responsible Authorities. 
 

10) Out of Hours and Daytime Inspections had been carried out 
in partnership with the Police. 
 

11) The Council’s Community Safety Team, the Police and 
Trading Standards had carried out a joint risk assessment of 
a number of high risk premises.  From this work a selection 
of premises were targeted through the Home Office funded 
‘Due Diligence Audit’ programme. 
 

12) An early intervention programme was commenced to 
address complaints or concerns at premises where there had 
been a failure of general management. 
 

13) Following endorsement by this Committee on 2nd November 
to carry out inspections on behalf of the Security Industry 
Authority (SIA) a date has been agreed for the first 
inspection. 
 

14) The Licensing Manager, currently Chair, has attended the 
County Licensing Officers Working Group to share 
information on services and assist in drafting common 
Licence Application Forms and Policy and Guidance Notes. 
 

Page 3



  
 

LicensingLicensingLicensingLicensing 
Committee 

 
 
 

14th December 2009 

 
15) A handbook, which included a copy of the Licensing Act 

2003, guidance under Section 182, a jargon buster, Lacors 
guidance on the role of elected Members and the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy had been distributed to 
Members in August.   

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
(The Licensing Manager was asked to provide Councillors Braley 
and Hartnett with more detail on complaints received regarding 
Smoking on Licensed Premises, Breach of Licensing Conditions 
and irresponsible drinks promotions.) 
 

17. WEST MERCIA POLICE  
 
Members received a verbal report on policing activity during 2009 
from Inspector Ian Joseph on behalf of West Mercia Police. 
 
He reported that 2009 had proved to be challenging for the Police 
as new performance measures had been introduced relating to 
public confidence and satisfaction.  Compliance with the Policing 
Pledge and closer attention to customer satisfaction levels arising 
from the Victim Code had required officers and staff to adjust to 
new methods of working.   
This included, in addition to daily crime recording and providing 
value for money: 
 
1) the ability to offer appointments to members of the public on 

request: 
 

2) regular and appropriate updates are made to victims of 
crime; 
 

3) that all enquiries be conducted in a timely manner; 
 

4) higher visibility policing, and 
 

5) that the community could identify and contact local policing 
teams, when required. 

 
He reported that the loss of a dedicated Licensing Officer for 
Redditch had not detracted from effectiveness but through 
combined activities with the Bromsgrove Licensing Team had led to 
scrutiny of pub chains and door staff firms across both districts. 
 

Page 4



  
 

LicensingLicensingLicensingLicensing 
Committee 

 
 
 

14th December 2009 

 
The Committee was informed that violent crime, much of which had 
been alcohol related continued to cause concern in the night time 
economy.  However, better lighting on Unicorn Hill and Church 
Green West together with strategically placed planters, which had 
helped to break up larger groups congregating outside late night 
food outlets, had led to revellers feeling safer and more secure.  
Ongoing scrutiny of the management of local licensed premises 
together with interventions by local licensing agencies, working in 
partnership to address issues, had led to no reviews being required 
during 2009.   
Inspector Joseph highlighted two examples where partners working 
together had addressed problems: 
 
a) school holiday teenage disco nights; and 
b) door staff violence. 

 
Other agencies, as well as Redditch Borough Council, who had 
been involved in partnership working included Worcestershire 
County Council’s Trading Standards Team and Customs and 
Excise. 
 
Work for the coming year was outlined and included: 
 
i) drink banning orders; 
ii) Operation Staysafe – working with agencies such as Health and 

Social Services to address concerns regarding under-age 
drinking. 

 
Inspector Joseph expressed concern regarding the availability of 
low cost alcohol and the adverse impact through increasing levels 
of alcohol abuse which can lead to health, crime and social issues.  
He highlighted recent discussions about fixing minimum prices for 
alcohol and suggested that tackling excessive alcohol consumption 
could be blamed for many social ills and would need to be 
addressed in the longer term to safeguard future generations from 
similar problems. 
 
The Chair thanked Inspector Joseph for his report. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 

18. WORCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - TRADING 
STANDARDS  
 
Members received a verbal report from Simon Wilkes, Trading 
Standards Manager for Worcestershire County Council (WCC). 

Page 5



  
 

LicensingLicensingLicensingLicensing 
Committee 

 
 
 

14th December 2009 

 
 
He reported that Trading Standards had carried out alcohol related 
work in Redditch over the last year. 
This had included: 
 
1) a project run in partnership with WCC’s Youth Services to 

target areas of the town where there was relatively high 
levels of alcohol related youth disorder.  Youth services had 
provided additional resources in Matchborough and 
Winyates to engage young people and attempt to divert them 
from drinking in public places.  Trading Standards worked 
with local off-licenses to ensure that adequate preventative 
measures were in place to stop sales to underage 
customers. 
 

2) Home Office funding had been received by the Community 
Safety Partnership to engage local businesses.  Consultants 
were engaged to assess the performance of a number of 
pubs and off-licences in areas where alcohol related disorder 
was high.  Several visits were made to premises to assess 
performance and produce an action plan to address any 
problem areas. 
 

3) None of the premises tested during a exercise carried out 
during January 2009 sold to underage volunteers.  However 
when the exercise was repeated in June 2009 it resulted in 2 
sales being made.  Fixed Penalty Notices were issued to the 
sellers and written warnings were given as there were 
improvements which could be made to their systems.  The 
premises will be retested before the end of March 2010. 
 

4) Five pubs were tested underage sales in July 2009 resulting 
in 1 which sold to the tester. 
 

5) The Licensing Forum has proved a useful avenue for the 
Responsible Authorities to share intelligence and plan 
activities.  Guidance notes have been prepared for those 
agencies involved in the prevention of underage sales.  This 
will ensure that the business community is given a consistent 
message from all parties. 
 

6) The Licensing Manager at Redditch has been compiling a 
booklet of advice and guidance for all premise licence 
holders and new applicants. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 

Page 6



  
 

LicensingLicensingLicensingLicensing 
Committee 

 
 
 

14th December 2009 

 
19. PREMISES LICENSING - UPDATE  

 
Members considered a report that provided an update on progress 
made in implementing recommendations made by Redditch 
Community Safety Partnership in the “Cardiff Report” to this 
Committee in December 2007. 
 
Officers reported that progress had been made in the following 
areas: 
 
1) a review of the Licensing Service had been carried out with 

new roles having been defined that included a dedicated 
member of staff for enforcement. 
 

2) the Responsible Authorities had strengthened their 
enforcement practices, which had led premises to take action 
to reduce the risk their activities posed to licensing 
objectives. 
 

3) a number of initiatives targeting Officer and Member 
knowledge of licensing law and review procedures had been 
delivered with others already being planned. 
 

4) Discussion had been ongoing between Redditch Community 
Safety Partnership (RCSP), Worcestershire Drug and 
Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) and Worcestershire Acute 
Hospitals Trust to introduce a procedure to allow data 
collection from patients attending the Accident and 
Emergency Department who have been assaulted.  This 
data would assist RCSP in identifying patterns of disorder 
and other unreported incidents.  The Police had introduced a 
policy which allows them to collect information on where 
offenders under the influence of alcohol had been drinking. 
 

5) Risk assessment procedures had been used to assist in 
premises engagement particularly on premises associated 
with high numbers of incidents and offences. 
 

6) Formal risk assessments had been used to select venues to 
participate in the first licensed premises audit and award 
scheme in Redditch. 
 

7) A multi-agency licensing monitoring forum had been 
operating since May 2008 to assist in the co-ordination of 
risk assessment, engagement and enforcement activity. 

 

Page 7



  
 

LicensingLicensingLicensingLicensing 
Committee 

 
 
 

14th December 2009 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
(Legal Services Manager to provide advice on the advisability of 
Members of Licensing Committee visiting premises on an ad hoc 
basis.) 
 

20. WORK PROGRAMME 2009 - 2011  
 
Members received an update on the Committee’s work programme 
for 2009/11. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the report be noted. 

 
2) that the following reports be added to the programme: 
 

i) 25th January 2010 – Taxi Rank Report; 
 

ii) 26th April 2010 – Cardiff Report; and 
 

iii) 19th July 2010 – Half Yearly update on Licensing Act 
2003 from RBC Licensing, West Mercia Police and 
Worcestershire County Council (Trading Standards) 

 
 

 
 

 Chair 
 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7pm 
and closed at 8.55pm 

Page 8



  
 

LICENSING 
Committee 

 No Specific Ward Relevance 

25th January 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReport0.doc/dg 
amended LW 18.12.09 

 

VEHICLE SAFETY INSPECTIONS /IN-HOUSE INSPECTIONS  
 
 
(Report of the Head of Environment)  
 
1. Summary of Proposals 
 
It is recommended that vehicle safety inspections are conducted in-house 
on a 6 monthly basis; irrespective of the age of the vehicle.  A new post of 
vehicle tester be created with authorised powers to suspend vehicles if 
necessary in consultation with the designated licensing officer of the 
service, in additional the National Standards for the testing of vehicles 
should be adopted to provide vehicle testers with clear and set inspection 
guidelines; incorporating the minor changes to meet local concerns as 
proposed by officers.   
 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that 

 
1) Vehicle testing to be carried out at 6 monthly intervals. 
 
2) Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Inspection 

testing be brought back in house to ensure vehicle 
standards. 

 
3) A new post of Vehicle Inspection Engineer be created to 

sit within the Licensing Team, stationed at Crossgates 
Depot to carry out vehicle inspection tests, checks on 
accident damaged vehicles and other inspection duties 
as necessary. 

 
4) Introduction of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 

Vehicle Inspection test fee of £50.00; which will be 
looked at annually as part of fees and charges. 

 
5) National Inspection standards for Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire Vehicles be adopted. 
 
6) All Vehicle Engineers at Crossgates be authorised to 

suspend Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles in 
consultation with the designated Officer in Licensing 
those vehicles found to be not up to MOT/Vehicle testing 
standards. 

Agenda Item 4Page 9



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 
 

 

25th January 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReport0.doc/dg 
amended LW 18.12.09 

7) Vehicle conversions be refused without SVA/IVA type 
approval from VOSA as from 1st April 2010. 

 
3. Financial, Legal, Policy Risk and Sustainability Implications 

 
Financial 
 

3.1 The cost of re-introducing in house 6 monthly vehicle inspection 
testing for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles would be 
met entirely by revenue received from licence fees. Adopting this 
method would place no financial burden on the Council.  

 
3.2 Table of proposed charges: 
 

Vehicle Inspection test £50.00 
MOT £54.00 
Vehicle Inspection test + 
MOT 

 
£64.00 

 
Legal 
 

3.3 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
enables District Councils to make conditions in respect of Hackney 
Carriages Section 47 (1) and Private Hire Vehicles Section 48 (2).  
The Council’s conditions require vehicles to undergo an inspection 
by an authorised garage. 

 
3.4 The Local Authority has powers under Section 50 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to require Vehicle 
Inspections on up to three occasions per year. 
 
Policy 
 

3.5 The Council has a duty to ensure the safety of the travelling public 
and do it all it can to ensure that any Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Vehicles licensed by the Authority are fit for the purpose of 
carrying passengers for hire and reward.   
 
Risk 
 

3.6 Public safety is the primary objective in the regulation and licensing 
of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles and vehicle 
examinations should be unbiased and sufficiently rigorous so as to 
ensure that vehicles are operated and maintained to a high 
standard. 

 
  

Page 10



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 
 

 

25th January 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReport0.doc/dg 
amended LW 18.12.09 

Sustainability / Environmental  
 
3.7 None. 
 

Report 
 

4. Background 
 

4.1 Following a Best Value Inspection and report in 2003 which 
recommended that vehicle inspections should be subject to 
external provision.  Two garages applied and were subsequently 
authorised to conduct the inspections in 2003.  The amount of 
authorised garages has not changed since this date and the two 
current garages are Hogan Brothers and Abacus Auto Services.  It 
is understood that 99% of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicle Fleet are using one of the garages only. 

 
4.2 In March 2006 a report was put before the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee regarding guidelines being available to garages seeking 
authorisation to conduct Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle 
Inspections.  These guidelines were specifically for what the testing 
stations needed to provide and not related to vehicle standards.  

 
4.3 The Local Authority has powers under Section 50 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to require Vehicle 
inspections on up to three occasions per year. 

 
5. Key Issues 
 
5.1 The review of the vehicle inspection tests and the authorised 

garages has raised a possible conflict of interest in that garages 
doing the vehicle inspection tests and MOT’s are also servicing 
those vehicles to enable them to get through the test. 

 
5.2 The Licensing Team with engineers from Crossgates have 

conducted routine spot check inspections of vehicles licensed by 
the Borough.  The results show that vehicle standards have 
dropped dramatically since vehicle inspections were outsourced.   

 
5.3 The results from these inspections have raised serious issues of 

concern regarding public safety, and clearly indicate that the 
majority of drivers are not maintaining their vehicles to an 
acceptable standard throughout the current 12 month test period. 
(results of spot check inspections see appendix 1) 

 
5.4 The introduction of 6 monthly testing (recommendation 1) of 

vehicles would make a positive contribution to ensuring that all 
vehicles licensed by Redditch Borough Council are maintained to 

Page 11



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 
 

 

25th January 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReport0.doc/dg 
amended LW 18.12.09 

an efficient road safety standard, ensure continuous improvement 
and will help ensure that vehicle owners and drivers to maintain 
their vehicles to the appropriate standards. 

 
5.5 Many of these vehicles are on the road for most of the day and 

night everyday of the year. It is common for the annual mileage to 
be up to 100,000 miles per year which is the equivalent to 10 years 
mileage for the average car user. For this reason and because 
Redditch Borough Council needs to ensure that its taxi fleet is well 
maintained and fit for purpose it is recommended that all vehicles 
regardless of age, are  tested every 6 months. 

 
5.6 The Local Authority has powers under Section 50 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to require Vehicle 
inspections on up to three occasions per year, which is a general 
requirement of a number of other Authorities, including Worcester. 

 
5.7 Licence fees will be continued to be paid annually with Vehicle 

plates only issued for a 6 month period. The additional test fee, 
estimated to be £50.00 will be an additional cost paid by the vehicle 
proprietor and is believed to be fair additional charge as it relates to 
the Health and Safety.  In addition, it has been set to recover costs 
and not make a profit.  

 
5.8 To ensure that these tests are conducted to the required standards 

and to maintain consistency and continuity, all vehicles will be 
tested in house at Crossgates Garage (recommendation 2).   

 
5.9 Officers recognise that this will be a significant increase in workload 

at Crossgates Depot and could not be undertaken without an 
additional post of Vehicle Inspection Engineer being created 
(recommendation 3).  The post holder should be trained to VOSA 
Class IV standards to work alongside other Crossgates staff to 
ensure continuity of testing during emergencies and staff absences.   

 
5.10 The postholder would be responsible for all vehicle inspections, 

spot checks and accident damage re-tests and any other like 
duties.  In agreement with The Transport and Supplies Manager at 
Crossgates the postholder would be responsible to Licensing but 
be stationed at Crossgates Depot.  There is available office space 
at Crossgates Depot the use of which has been agreed between 
Management for the additional post.  
 

5.11 The cost of this additional post will be entirely met from vehicle 
testing fees.  For cost analysis please see appendix 2 

 
5.12 It is recommended by Officers that Redditch Borough Council 

adopts the National Inspection Standards (appendix 3 and 

Page 12



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 
 

 

25th January 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReport0.doc/dg 
amended LW 18.12.09 

recommendation 4); incorporating the minor changes suggested by 
Officers (appendix 4 refers) for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicles; which has been written by the Technical Officer Group in 
conjunction with the Public Authority Transport Network, the Freight 
Transport Association and endorsed by VOSA.  

 
5.13 This document will give vehicle inspection engineers clear and set 

guidelines for the testing of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicles.  It sets down what constitutes a failure and with the 
amendments made by Officers when Engineers can give 14 days to 
the vehicle owner to correct a fault. E.g. not carrying a fire 
extinguisher. 
 

5.14 Following the adoption of the National Standards for vehicle 
inspections it is recommended that Vehicle testing engineers at 
Crossgates Depot be authorised to suspend vehicles 
(recommendation 5) in consultation with the designated Officer or 
Head of Service any vehicle which fails the vehicle inspection test.  
 

5.15 The functions of the new post will be covered by the mechanics at 
Crossgates Depot during emergencies and staff absences such as 
leave or sickness.  The mechanics will also be authorised to 
suspend vehicles in consultation with designated Licensing Officers 
or responsible Manager of Service. 
 

5.16 The current regime for testing vehicles does not encompass this 
ability and it is recognised that some vehicles that are tested prior 
to their licence expiry could and do fail the inspection test; but 
because their licence has not expired owners continue to work 
these vehicles whilst awaiting vehicle parts for instance.  This is 
considered by officers to be a dangerous practice.  This new 
system of authorised vehicle engineers should ensure this does not 
happen in future. 
 

5.17 Vehicles which have been converted to carry passengers or had 
their seating capacity reduced in order to get a licence for Private 
Hire must have an SVA/IVA (Single Vehicle Approval/Individual 
Vehicle Approval) test carried out (recommendation 6).  This safety 
test includes checks on the load impact during accident, any 
tracking fitted to the floor to enable vehicles to carry extra seats or 
wheelchairs and seatbelts. 
 

5.18 Redditch Taxi Association has been consulted during the 
preparation of this report between 1st October 2009 and 31st 
December 2009.  See appendix 5 for their comments. 
 

Page 13



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 
 

 

25th January 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReport0.doc/dg 
amended LW 18.12.09 

6. Other Implications 
 

 Asset Management - Additional post holder to be housed at 
Crossgates in available office space. 

 
Community Safety - Vehicle inspection standards have a 

direct impact of the safety of the 
travelling public. 

 
Human Resources - Additional post to be created to carry 

out vehicle inspection tests and spot 
checks. 

Social Exclusion - Taxis are often used by people who do 
not have their own vehicles or who are 
vulnerable e.g. are elderly or have a 
disability and Redditch Borough Council 
has a duty to ensure that they are safe. 

 
7. Lessons Learnt 
 
7.1 The safety of the travelling public is paramount and ensuring 

vehicle standards are maintained is crucial to that role.   The 
outsourcing of vehicle inspection tests to authorised garages whilst 
giving vehicle proprietors a choice of garages has led to a differing 
in the interpretation of the standards set by the Council.  No written 
guidance has previously been given to garages and vehicle testers 
needed to be able to decide the vehicles ability to remain safe for 
the foreseen licence period (12 months). 

 
7.2 Redditch Borough Council has 368 licensed Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire Vehicles at the moment.  Vehicle spot check 
operations have been conducted between 26th June 2009 and 9th 
December 2009.  A total of 103 vehicles have been examined, and 
30 of those vehicles had faults so serious that the vehicles were 
immediately suspended.  This evidence along side two VOSA 
evenings, one with poor results in February 2009 and a 2nd evening 
in early September 2009 which had much better results; are a 
major concern, and suggest a poor standard of vehicle 
maintenance and the need for the continual monitoring of these 
standards.  

 
8. Background Papers 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Report 2006 
Background papers to spot checks 
SVA/IVA on line information by VOSA 
National Inspection Standards 
Financial Analysis of post to be created 

Page 14



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 
 

 

25th January 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReport0.doc/dg 
amended LW 18.12.09 

 
9. Consultation 

 
9.1 This report has been prepared in consultation with relevant 

Borough Council Officers.  
 

9.2 Other consultees were the Redditch Taxi Association, its members 
and West Mercia Police. 
 

10. Author of Report 
 
The author of this report is Sue Garratt (Licensing Manager) who 
can be contacted on extension 3032 (email: 
sue.garratt@redditchbc.gov.uk) for more information. 
 

11. Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 -  Spot Check Analysis 

Appendix 2  - Cost Analysis of post to be created 

Appendix 3  - National Inspection Standards 

Appendix 4  -  Minor changes to National Standards suggested 
by Officers 

Appendix 5  - Redditch Taxi Association Response 

 

 

Page 15



Page 16



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

Appendix 1  
 

 

25th January 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReportSpotCheckAnalysisAppendix10.doc/dg 

 
SPOT CHECK OPERATIONS  

 
OP 1     24/6/09 
 
   
NUMBER OF VEHICLES REQUESTED                    - 28 
   
NUMBER MAKING CONTACT WITH  
VALID REASON FOR NON-ATTENDANCE             

- 7 

   

NUMBER OF FAILURE TO ATTEND                        - 0   

   

TOTAL NUMBER OF VEHICLES EXAMINED        - 21 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH FAULTS                 - 20 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH NO FAULTS         - 1 

   

NUMBER OF SUSPENSIONS FOLLOWING   
ENGINEERS ADVICE                                                   

- 2 

   

NUMBER OF PLATES SURRENDERED                   - 0 

 
 

OP 2      8/7/09 
 
 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES REQUESTED                    
 

- 24 

   

NUMBER MAKING CONTACT WITH  
VALID REASON FOR NON-ATTENDANCE             

- 5 

   

NUMBER OF FAILURE TO ATTEND                        - 1          

   

TOTAL NUMBER OF VEHICLES EXAMINED        - 15 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH FAULTS                 - 11 

   

 

Page 17



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

Appendix 1  
 

 

25th January 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReportSpotCheckAnalysisAppendix10.doc/dg 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH NO FAULTS          - 4 

   

NUMBER OF SUSPENSIONS FOLLOWING   
ENGINEERS ADVICE                                                   

- 2     

   

NUMBER OF PLATES SURRENDERED                   - 3 

 

OP 3    22 /7/09 
 
 
 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES REQUESTED                    - 24 

   

NUMBER MAKING CONTACT WITH  
VALID REASON FOR NON-ATTENDANCE             

- 5    

         

NUMBER OF FAILURE TO ATTEND                       - 2 

   

TOTAL NUMBER OF VEHICLES EXAMINED         - 15 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH FAULTS                 - 13 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH NO FAULTS          - 2 

   

NUMBER OF SUSPENSIONS FOLLOWING   
ENGINEERS ADVICE                                                

- 8    

   

NUMBER OF PLATES SURRENDERED                 - 2   

 

OP 4    19/8/09 
 
 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES REQUESTED                    - 20 

   

NUMBER MAKING CONTACT WITH  
VALID REASON FOR NON-ATTENDANCE             

- 3 

   

NUMBER OF FAILURE TO ATTEND                       - 6    

   

TOTAL NUMBER OF VEHICLES EXAMINED         - 10 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH FAULTS                 - 9 

Page 18



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

Appendix 1  
 

 

25th January 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReportSpotCheckAnalysisAppendix10.doc/dg 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH NO FAULTS          - 1 

   

NUMBER OF SUSPENSIONS FOLLOWING   
ENGINEERS ADVICE                                                

- 2   

   

NUMBER OF PLATES SURRENDERED                 - 1   

  

OP 5    26/8/09 
 
Cancelled due to adverse weather conditions, although 1 further plate surrendered 
following appointment letter being sent out. 

 
 

NUMBER OF PLATES SURRENDERED                 - 1 

 
 

OP 6 14/10/09 
 
 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES REQUESTED                    - 24 

   

NUMBER MAKING CONTACT WITH  
VALID REASON FOR NON-ATTENDANCE             

- 7 

   

NUMBER OF FAILURE TO ATTEND                       - 6    

   

TOTAL NUMBER OF VEHICLES EXAMINED         - 11 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH FAULTS                 - 8 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH NO FAULTS          - 3 

   

NUMBER OF SUSPENSIONS FOLLOWING   
ENGINEERS ADVICE                                                

- 5   

   

NUMBER OF PLATES SURRENDERED                  - 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

Appendix 1  
 

 

25th January 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReportSpotCheckAnalysisAppendix10.doc/dg 

OP 7 18/11/09 
 
 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES REQUESTED                    - 25 

   

NUMBER MAKING CONTACT WITH  
VALID REASON FOR NON-ATTENDANCE             

- 2 

   

NUMBER OF FAILURE TO ATTEND                       - 8    

   

TOTAL NUMBER OF VEHICLES EXAMINED         - 14 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH FAULTS                 - 9 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH NO FAULTS          - 5 

   

NUMBER OF SUSPENSIONS FOLLOWING   
ENGINEERS ADVICE                                                

- 5 

   

NUMBER OF PLATES SURRENDERED                  - 1 

 

OP 8 9/12/09 
 
 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES REQUESTED                    - 26 

   

NUMBER MAKING CONTACT WITH  
VALID REASON FOR NON-ATTENDANCE             

- 3 

   

NUMBER OF FAILURE TO ATTEND                       - 5   

   

TOTAL NUMBER OF VEHICLES EXAMINED         - 17 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH FAULTS                 - 16 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH NO FAULTS          - 1 

   

NUMBER OF SUSPENSIONS FOLLOWING   
ENGINEERS ADVICE                                                

- 6    

   

NUMBER OF PLATES SURRENDERED                  - 1 

Page 20



   
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

Appendix 1  
 

 

25th January 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00004086\VehicleInspectionsReportSpotCheckAnalysisAppendix10.doc/dg 

TOTALS TO DATE 
 
 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES REQUESTED                   - 171 
   

NUMBER MAKING CONTACT WITH  
VALID REASON FOR NON-ATTENDANCE             

- 32 

   

NUMBER OF FAILURE TO ATTEND                       - 28    

   

TOTAL NUMBER OF VEHICLES EXAMINED         - 103 
   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH FAULTS                - 86 

   

NUMBER OF VEHICLES WITH NO FAULTS          - 17 

   

NUMBER OF SUSPENSIONS FOLLOWING   
ENGINEERS ADVICE                                                

- 30 

   

NUMBER OF PLATES SURRENDERED                  - 8 

 
 
 

Page 21



Page 22



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

Appendix 2 
 

 

25th January 2010 

 

VEHICLE ENGINEER 
NEW POST COSTINGS 

 
New post created, based at Crossgate’s depot but managed by the Licensing Manager. 
The post holder would be responsible for 6 monthly testing of the Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Vehicle fleet; this would also include re-tests and accident damage tests. 
 
 
Vehicle Engineer  Salary scale 6  £31,342.00 per annum 
(this figures includes salary on costs e.g. national insurance contributions) 
 
To be funded through vehicle testing fees: 
 
 
370 vehicles x 2:   £50.00 per test = £37,000.00 
 
90 vehicles (re-test)  £50.00 per test =  £4,500.00 
(Estimated figure of an eighth of vehicle tests completed)   
 
37 accident damage tests £50.00 per test = £1,850.00 
(Estimated figure 10% of vehicle fleet) 
   
 
    Total -   £43,350.00 
 
 
All income over and above £31,342.00 would be used to pay for office consumables, materials 
used in the course of business, e.g. computer licenses and support, central support costs,   office 
space, protection clothing, mobile telephone and other miscellaneous items). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



Page 24



 

P
ag

e 
0 

 

                                  

Page 25



 

P
ag

e 
1 

 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
 T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
n

u
m

er
o

u
s 

b
o

d
ie

s 
in

sp
ec

ti
n

g
 h

ac
kn

ey
 c

ar
ri

ag
e 

an
d

 p
ri

va
te

 h
ir

e 
ve

h
ic

le
s,

 V
O

S
A

 i
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
iv

e 
o

f 
th

e 

P
u

b
lic

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 N
et

w
o

rk
 (

P
A

T
N

) 
in

it
ia

ti
ve

 t
o

 d
ev

el
o

p
 a

n
d

 s
h

ar
e 

b
es

t 
p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 A
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
 

ap
p

lie
d

 c
o

n
si

st
en

tl
y 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
tr

y 
w

ill
 n

o
 d

o
u

b
t 

b
en

ef
it

 a
ll 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

in
d

u
st

ry
. 

 V
O

S
A

 h
o

p
es

 t
h

at
 l

o
ca

l 
au

th
o

ri
ti

es
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 t

h
e 

g
u

id
e 

w
h

en
 s

et
ti

n
g

 i
n

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

an
d

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
e 

in
 it

s 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

 

  P
h

ili
p

 B
ai

le
y 

S
V

A
 a

nd
 IV

A
 P

ol
ic

y 
E

ng
in

ee
r 

(L
ig

ht
 V

eh
ic

le
s)

 
V

eh
ic

le
 &

 O
pe

ra
to

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
ge

nc
y 

R
oa

dw
or

th
in

es
s 

&
 T

es
tin

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
G

ro
up

 
     

 
 

     

Page 26



 

P
ag

e 
2 

 

B
E

S
T

 P
R

A
C

T
IC

E
 G

U
ID

E
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 IN

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 

H
A

C
K

N
E

Y
 C

A
R

R
IA

G
E

 &
 P

R
IV

A
T

E
 H

IR
E

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

S
 

 
P

A
R

T
 1

 
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
             

T
hi

s 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

gu
id

e 
se

ts
 o

ut
 th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
nd

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
f h

ac
kn

ey
 c

ar
ria

ge
 &

 p
riv

at
e 

hi
re

 v
eh

ic
le

s.
 

It 
is

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 th

e 
gu

id
e 

is
 a

ls
o 

m
ad

e 
fr

ee
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 o
w

ne
rs

, p
ro

pr
ie

to
rs

, o
pe

ra
to

rs
 a

nd
 d

riv
er

s 
of

 h
ac

kn
ey

 c
ar

ria
ge

 &
 p

riv
at

e 
hi

re
 

ve
hi

cl
es

, w
ho

 m
ay

 fi
nd

 it
 u

se
fu

l a
s 

it 
de

ta
ils

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
th

at
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
te

d 
to

. T
he

 g
ui

de
 a

ls
o 

ex
pl

ai
ns

 th
e 

re
as

on
s 

w
hy

, a
 v

eh
ic

le
 

pr
es

en
te

d 
fo

r 
in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
is

su
ed

 w
ith

 a
 p

as
s 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
. 

    

Page 27



 

P
ag

e 
3 

 

IN
TR

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
 

1.
1 

B
E

S
T 

P
R

A
C

TI
C

E
 G

U
ID

E
 

T
hi

s 
B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

G
ui

de
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

T
ec

hn
ic

al
 O

ffi
ce

r 
G

ro
up

 (
T

O
G

) 
to

 a
ss

is
t H

ac
kn

ey
 C

ar
ria

ge
 (

H
C

) 
an

d 
P

riv
at

e 
H

ire
 

V
eh

ic
le

 (
P

H
V

) 
op

er
at

or
s,

 v
eh

ic
le

 p
re

se
nt

er
s,

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
au

th
or

iti
es

 a
nd

 v
eh

ic
le

 in
sp

ec
to

rs
  

 It 
is

 in
te

nd
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 B
es

t P
ra

ct
ic

e 
G

ui
de

 w
ill

 e
nd

or
se

 a
 m

in
im

um
 n

at
io

na
l v

eh
ic

le
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

st
an

da
rd

. I
t w

ill
 b

e 
ap

pr
ec

ia
te

d 
th

at
 it

 is
 

fo
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 lo

ca
l l

ic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
 r

ea
ch

 th
ei

r 
ow

n 
de

ci
si

on
s,

 b
ot

h 
on

 o
ve

ra
ll 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

on
 in

di
vi

du
al

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 
in

 th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f t

he
ir 

ow
n 

op
er

at
io

na
l n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 g
eo

gr
ap

hi
ca

l c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s.
 

 V
ar

io
us

 i
nt

er
es

te
d 

pa
rt

ie
s,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 (
D

fT
),

 V
eh

ic
le

 &
 O

pe
ra

to
r 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ge
nc

y 
(V

O
S

A
),

 D
is

ab
le

d 
P

er
so

ns
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 A
dv

is
or

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 (
D

P
T

A
C

) 
an

d 
th

e 
In

st
itu

te
 o

f L
ic

en
si

ng
, h

av
e 

be
en

 c
on

su
lte

d 
on

 th
is

 B
es

t P
ra

ct
ic

e 
G

ui
de

. 
 T

he
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 O
ffi

ce
r 

G
ro

up
 c

om
m

en
ds

 t
he

 D
fT

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 t

he
 T

ax
i 

an
d 

P
riv

at
e 

H
ire

 V
eh

ic
le

 L
ic

en
si

ng
: 

B
es

t 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

G
ui

da
nc

e.
 V

eh
ic

le
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

, 
lo

ca
l 

lic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

in
sp

ec
to

rs
 a

re
 s

tr
on

gl
y 

ad
vi

se
d 

to
 r

ef
er

 t
o 

th
e 

D
fT

 g
ui

de
 i

n 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

is
 B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

G
ui

de
. M

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ca
n 

be
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

on
 th

e 
D

fT
 w

eb
 s

ite
 a

t: 
w

w
w

.d
ft

.g
o

v.
u

k 

1.
2 

A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 T

O
 D

E
V

O
L

V
E

D
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TI
O

N
S

 
T

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 (
D

fT
) 

ha
s 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
H

C
 a

nd
 P

H
V

 l
eg

is
la

tio
n 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

 a
nd

, 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y,
 t

he
 

gu
id

an
ce

 th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

di
re

ct
ed

 a
t l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

. R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
H

C
 a

nd
 P

H
V

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
in

 S
co

tla
nd

 a
nd

 N
or

th
er

n 
Ir

el
an

d 
is

 d
ev

ol
ve

d,
 b

ut
 t

he
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 i
nv

ol
ve

d 
in

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

w
ill

 d
ec

id
e 

fo
r 

th
em

se
lv

es
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 to
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 w
is

h 
to

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 o
r 

ad
ap

t t
o 

su
it 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
pu

rp
os

es
. 

1.
3 

TE
C

H
N

IC
A

L
 S

A
F

E
TY

 IS
S

U
E

S
 

T
he

 a
im

 o
f 

a 
lo

ca
l 

lic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 t
o 

pr
ot

ec
t 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
. 

Lo
ca

l 
lic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
aw

ar
e 

th
at

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
af

e 
an

d 
w

el
l m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
H

C
 a

nd
 P

H
V

s.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 it
 is

 c
le

ar
ly

 im
po

rt
an

t t
ha

t s
om

eb
od

y 
us

in
g 

a 
H

C
 o

r 
P

H
V

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
nf

id
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 v
eh

ic
le

 is
 s

af
e.

  
 T

o 
th

is
 e

nd
, t

hi
s 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
gu

id
e 

w
ill

 d
et

ai
l s

pe
ci

fic
 v

eh
ic

le
 s

af
et

y 
is

su
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ex

pe
rt

 te
ch

ni
ca

l k
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ec
hn

ic
al

 O
ffi

ce
r 

G
ro

up
 (

T
O

G
).

 T
hi

s 
gu

id
e 

w
ill

 f
oc

us
 t

he
re

fo
re

 o
n 

te
ch

ni
ca

l s
af

et
y 

is
su

es
 a

nd
 m

ak
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 t
ow

ar
ds

 
sa

fe
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

. 
F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 t
he

 T
O

G
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

D
fT

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

th
at

 t
he

re
 is

 n
o 

up
pe

r 
ag

e 
lim

it 
fo

r 
H

C
 a

nd
 P

H
V

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

er
e 

is
 d

oc
um

en
ta

ry
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

 r
ou

tin
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 r
eg

im
e.

  

Page 28



 

P
ag

e 
4 

 

Lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ill
 w

an
t t

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
ei

r 
va

rio
us

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 is

 p
ro

pe
rly

 ju
st

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ris
k 

it 
ai

m
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
. 

T
hi

s 
is

 n
ot

 t
o 

pr
op

os
e 

th
at

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d,

 o
ve

r-
ze

al
ou

s 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
gi

m
e 

cr
ea

te
s 

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
 f

or
 t

he
 H

C
 a

nd
 P

H
V

 t
ra

de
s 

bu
t 

pr
im

ar
ily

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

sa
fe

ty
 fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 p

as
se

ng
er

s 
an

d 
no

t f
or

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f o
pe

ra
to

rs
. 

 1.
4 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F 
TH

E
 G

U
ID

A
N

C
E

 
T

hi
s 

gu
id

an
ce

 d
el

ib
er

at
el

y 
se

ek
s 

to
 e

m
br

ac
e 

sa
fe

ty
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
ve

hi
cl

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 u
si

ng
, 

as
 a

 b
as

ic
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

st
an

da
rd

, 
th

os
e 

la
id

 
do

w
n 

in
 T

he
 M

O
T

 I
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

M
an

ua
l 

fo
r 

C
ar

 &
 L

ig
ht

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 V
eh

ic
le

 T
es

tin
g 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
V

O
S

A
. 

T
hi

s 
B

es
t 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
G

ui
de

 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 t
es

tin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 t
o 

th
os

e 
in

 t
he

 M
O

T
 I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
M

an
ua

l. 
It 

is
 a

dv
is

ed
 t

ha
t 

lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
us

e 
th

e 
B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

G
ui

de
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

V
O

S
A

 M
O

T
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

M
an

ua
l a

s 
an

 a
dv

oc
at

e 
to

 p
ub

lic
 s

af
et

y.
 

 T
hi

s 
B

es
t 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
G

ui
de

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ll 
lo

ca
l 

lic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
ith

 a
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 v
eh

ic
le

 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y.

  
 1.

5 
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
L

E
 T

Y
P

E
S

 T
H

A
T 

M
A

Y
 B

E
 L

IC
E

N
S

E
D

 
T

he
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
gi

ve
s 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 d
is

cr
et

io
n 

ov
er

 th
e 

ty
pe

s 
of

 v
eh

ic
le

 th
at

 th
ey

 c
an

 li
ce

ns
e 

as
 H

C
 o

r 
P

H
V

s.
 S

om
e 

au
th

or
iti

es
 s

pe
ci

fy
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 th
at

 in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

ca
n 

on
ly

 b
e 

m
et

 b
y 

pu
rp

os
e-

bu
ilt

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
bu

t t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 li
ce

ns
e 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

 
 N

or
m

al
ly

, 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

is
 f

or
 l

oc
al

 l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
to

 a
do

pt
 t

he
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

fy
in

g 
as

 m
an

y 
di

ffe
re

nt
 t

yp
es

 o
f 

ve
hi

cl
es

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

. 
In

de
ed

, 
lo

ca
l 

lic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

m
ig

ht
 u

se
fu

lly
 s

pe
ci

fy
 o

nl
y 

ge
ne

ra
l 

cr
ite

ria
, 

(s
uc

h 
as

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ith
 f

ou
r 

do
or

s 
as

 H
C

) 
le

av
in

g 
it 

op
en

 t
o 

th
e 

H
C

 a
nd

 P
H

V
 t

ra
de

s 
to

 p
ut

 f
or

w
ar

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ch
oi

ce
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

sh
ow

n 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

os
e 

cr
ite

ria
. 

In
 

th
at

 w
ay

, t
he

re
 c

an
 b

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

ne
w

 v
eh

ic
le

 ty
pe

s 
to

 b
e 

re
ad

ily
 ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

. 
 It 

is
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 t
ha

t 
lo

ca
l l

ic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 c

au
tio

us
 a

bo
ut

 s
pe

ci
fy

in
g 

on
ly

 p
ur

po
se

-b
ui

lt 
H

C
, 

w
ith

 t
he

 s
tr

ic
t 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
 o

n 
su

pp
ly

 t
ha

t 
th

is
 im

pl
ie

s.
 (

T
he

re
 a

re
 a

t 
pr

es
en

t 
on

ly
 t

w
o 

de
si

gn
s 

of
 p

ur
po

se
-b

ui
lt 

H
C

.)
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

pu
rp

os
e-

bu
ilt

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
ar

e 
am

on
gs

t t
ho

se
 th

at
 a

 lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

co
ul

d 
be

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 li
ce

ns
e.

 
 1.

6 
A

C
C

E
S

S
IB

IL
IT

Y
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
ei

r 
ge

ne
ra

l c
on

di
tio

ns
, l

oc
al

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
au

th
or

iti
es

 w
ill

 w
an

t t
o 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
- 

bu
t 

no
t 

on
ly

 -
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 n

ee
d 

to
 t

ra
ve

l i
n 

a 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r)
 o

f 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
 t

he
y 

lic
en

se
 a

s 
H

ac
kn

ey
 C

ar
ria

ge
. 

F
or

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ils

, 
se

e 
S

ec
tio

n 
2 

– 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y.

 
 Li

ce
ns

in
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
aw

ar
e 

th
at

 i
t 

re
m

ai
ns

 t
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

fo
r 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
's

 i
nt

en
tio

n 
to

 m
ak

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 f

or
 

H
ac

kn
ey

 C
ar

ria
ge

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
A

ct
 1

99
5.

 I
n 

th
e 

m
ea

nt
im

e,
 l

ic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

H
C

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
po

lic
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

ar
ea

s.
  

Page 29



 

P
ag

e 
5 

 

1.
7 

TY
P

E
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 

It 
m

ay
 b

e 
th

at
 fr

om
 ti

m
e 

to
 ti

m
e 

a 
lo

ca
l l

ic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 li

ce
ns

e,
 a

s 
a 

H
C

 o
r 

P
H

V
, a

 v
eh

ic
le

 th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
im

po
rt

ed
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 (
th

at
 is

, 
by

 s
om

eb
od

y 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 t
he

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r)
. 

S
uc

h 
a 

ve
hi

cl
e 

m
ig

ht
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
y'

s 
cr

ite
ria

 
fo

r 
lic

en
si

ng
, b

ut
 m

ay
 n

on
et

he
le

ss
 b

e 
un

ce
rt

ai
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 w
id

er
 r

ul
es

 fo
r 

fo
re

ig
n 

ve
hi

cl
es

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

in
 th

e 
U

K
. S

uc
h 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
'ty

pe
 a

pp
ro

va
l' 

ru
le

s.
 F

or
 p

as
se

ng
er

 c
ar

s 
up

 to
 1

0 
ye

ar
s 

ol
d 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 fi
rs

t G
B

 r
eg

is
tr

at
io

n,
 th

is
 m

ea
ns

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f e
ith

er
: 

   
E

ur
op

ea
n 

W
ho

le
 V

eh
ic

le
 T

yp
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

; 
 
 

B
rit

is
h 

N
at

io
na

l T
yp

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
; o

r 
 
 

B
rit

is
h 

S
in

gl
e 

V
eh

ic
le

 A
pp

ro
va

l (
be

fo
re

 2
9 

A
pr

il 
20

09
) 

or
: 

 
 

In
di

vi
du

al
 V

eh
ic

le
 A

pp
ro

va
l  

(f
ro

m
 2

9 
A

pr
il 

20
09

) 
 

M
os

t 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

s 
is

su
ed

 s
in

ce
 l

at
e 

19
98

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
di

ca
te

 t
he

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
st

at
us

 o
f 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 F
ur

th
er

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

th
es

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r 

lic
en

si
ng

 a
nd

 r
eg

is
te

rin
g 

im
po

rte
d 

ve
hi

cl
es

 c
an

 b
e 

se
en

 a
t: 

 
w

w
w

.d
ft

.g
o

v.
u

k 
        V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
s 

V
eh

ic
le

s 
th

at
 a

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 f
or

 u
se

 in
 t

he
 U

K
 a

re
 n

ot
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

or
 a

 S
in

gl
e 

V
eh

ic
le

 A
pp

ro
va

l, 
ho

w
ev

er
, 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
si

tu
at

io
ns

 
w

he
re

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
st

an
da

rd
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l 
or

 b
e 

a 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 
A

n 
ex

am
pl

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
lo

ca
l 

lic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
th

at
 m

ay
 r

eq
ui

re
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
fo

r 
a 

ve
hi

cl
e 

th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

od
ifi

ed
 s

in
ce

 o
rig

in
al

 r
eg

is
tr

at
io

n,
 o

r 
w

he
re

 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
is

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f a
 c

on
tr

ac
tu

al
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t o
n 

a 
m

od
ifi

ed
 v

eh
ic

le
. T

o 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
is

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t a
 n

on
-

st
at

ut
or

y 
"V

ol
un

ta
ry

 S
V

A
" 

or
 “

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 IV

A
” 

te
st

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 T
he

 te
st

 c
rit

er
ia

 a
pp

lie
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
pe

nd
an

t o
n 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ca
te

go
ry

/c
la

ss
 

no
m

in
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

rm
 V

S
V

A
 1

. T
he

 fe
es

 a
re

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 th
os

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 c
la

ss
 o

f v
eh

ic
le

/te
st

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 V
A

T
 is

 p
ay

ab
le

. I
f t

he
 v

eh
ic

le
 is

 fo
un

d 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

 le
tte

r 
of

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 w

ill
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 a
nd

 n
ot

 a
 M

in
is

te
r's

 A
pp

ro
va

l c
er

tif
ic

at
e.

 T
he

 le
tte

r 
of

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

is
 n

ot
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
fo

r 
F

irs
t L

ic
en

si
ng

/R
eg

is
tr

at
io

n 
pu

rp
os

es
. 

 

It
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t f
or

 lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

ri
ti

es
 to

 in
si

st
 th

at
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 
ab

ov
e 

‘t
yp

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
s’

 is
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
ny

 im
po

rt
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

 b
ei

ng
 li

ce
ns

ed
 

as
 a

 H
ac

kn
ey

 C
ar

ri
ag

e 
or

 P
ri

va
te

 H
ir

e 
V

eh
ic

le
. 

  

Page 30



 

P
ag

e 
6 

 

1.
8 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
E

S
TI

N
G

 
T

he
re

 is
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
e 

va
ria

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
on

 v
eh

ic
le

 te
st

in
g.

 T
hi

s 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

gu
id

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 lo

ca
l l

ic
en

si
ng

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 w
ith

 a
 m

in
im

um
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r 

ve
hi

cl
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
. 

A
ll 

H
C

 a
nd

 P
H

V
 m

us
t 

be
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
to

 n
o 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

se
t 

ou
t i

n 
th

e 
V

O
S

A
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
'M

O
T

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
M

an
ua

l -
 C

ar
 a

nd
 L

ig
ht

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

', 
IS

B
N

 0
-9

54
92

39
-0

-1
.  

 A
s 

th
e 

te
rm

 i
m

pl
ie

s,
 h

ac
kn

ey
 c

ar
ria

ge
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
hi

re
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

ar
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
hi

re
 a

nd
 r

ew
ar

d 
pu

rp
os

es
 a

nd
 a

s 
su

ch
 a

re
 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 m

uc
h 

hi
gh

er
 a

nn
ua

l 
m

ile
ag

es
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

ar
du

ou
s 

dr
iv

in
g 

th
an

 n
or

m
al

 p
riv

at
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

. 
T

he
re

fo
re

, 
in

 t
he

 i
nt

er
es

ts
 o

f 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ro

ad
 u

se
r’s

 s
af

et
y,

 a
 m

or
e 

st
rin

ge
nt

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 te
st

in
g 

re
gi

m
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d.

 
 T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
th

e 
H

C
 &

 P
H

V
 t

es
t 

is
 t

o 
co

nf
irm

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
m

ee
t 

th
es

e 
m

or
e 

st
rin

ge
nt

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
m

us
t 

be
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 f
ul

ly
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 t
es

t. 
 I

t 
is

 n
ot

 i
nt

en
de

d 
th

at
 t

he
 t

es
t 

be
 u

se
d 

in
 l

ie
u 

of
 a

 r
eg

ul
ar

 p
re

ve
nt

at
iv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
  

If 
in

 t
he

 
op

in
io

n 
of

 t
he

 v
eh

ic
le

 e
xa

m
in

er
 t

he
 v

eh
ic

le
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

fu
lly

 p
re

pa
re

d,
 t

he
 t

es
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

te
rm

in
at

ed
 a

nd
 a

 f
ur

th
er

 f
ul

l t
es

t 
co

ul
d 

be
 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
 It 

is
 a

n 
of

fe
nc

e 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ro
ad

 tr
af

fic
 r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 to

 u
se

 a
n 

un
ro

ad
w

or
th

y 
ve

hi
cl

e 
on

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ig
hw

ay
. 

 H
C

 &
 P

H
V

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 fa

ili
ng

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
ei

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 in

 a
 s

af
e 

an
d 

ro
ad

w
or

th
y 

co
nd

iti
on

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
th

ei
r 

lic
en

ce
 s

us
pe

nd
ed

, c
ur

ta
ile

d 
or

 r
ev

ok
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l L
ic

en
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 
 T

hi
s 

B
es

t 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

G
ui

de
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
ea

d 
in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 V
eh

ic
le

 &
 O

pe
ra

to
r 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ge
nc

y 
(V

O
S

A
) 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

'M
O

T
 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
M

an
ua

l 
- 

C
ar

 a
nd

 L
ig

ht
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 V

eh
ic

le
 T

es
tin

g'
, 

IS
B

N
 0

-9
54

92
39

-0
-1

 o
r 

as
 a

m
en

de
d.

 T
hi

s 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

gu
id

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
oc

um
en

t 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 i
ns

pe
ct

, 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

pr
ep

ar
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 f
or

 i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

pr
io

r 
to

 b
ei

ng
 i

ss
ue

d 
w

ith
 a

 
ha

ck
ne

y 
ca

rr
ia

ge
 o

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
hi

re
 li

ce
nc

e.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 it

s 
co

nt
en

t t
he

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
gu

id
e 

is
 n

ot
 e

xh
au

st
iv

e.
  

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
in

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 t

he
 m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 a
 v

eh
ic

le
, 

it 
is

 m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

an
 it

em
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 o

rd
in

ar
ily

 p
as

s 
an

 M
O

T
 t

es
t 

w
ith

 
an

 a
dv

is
or

y 
no

te
, c

ou
ld

 fa
il 

th
e 

H
C

 &
 P

H
V

 te
st

. 
        

Page 31



 

P
ag

e 
7 

 

2 
N

O
V

E
L

TY
 V

E
H

IC
L

E
S

  (
S

TR
E

T
C

H
E

D
 L

IM
O

U
S

IN
E

S
) 

T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
gu

id
e 

of
fe

rs
 a

dv
ic

e 
to

 lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
on

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 f

or
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

no
ve

lty
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

 
T

he
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 t

he
 t

es
t 

fo
r 

no
ve

lty
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

at
 t

he
 s

am
e 

st
an

da
rd

 a
s 

fo
r 

ot
he

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
hi

re
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

 T
ha

t 
is

; 
as

 a
 b

as
ic

 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

st
an

da
rd

, 
th

os
e 

la
id

 d
ow

n 
in

 T
he

 M
O

T
 I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
M

an
ua

l f
or

 C
ar

 &
 L

ig
ht

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 V
eh

ic
le

 T
es

tin
g 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
V

O
S

A
 

an
d 

th
is

 b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
gu

id
e.

  
(F

or
 t

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
cl

ar
ity

, 
no

ve
lty

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
in

 t
hi

s 
gu

id
e 

w
ill

 r
ef

er
 t

o 
st

re
tc

h 
lim

ou
si

ne
s 

on
ly

 u
nt

il 
su

ch
 

tim
es

 a
s 

fu
rt

he
r 

gu
id

an
ce

 is
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

on
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 s
uc

h 
ve

hi
cl

e,
 i.

e.
 fi

re
 te

nd
er

s 
et

c)
. 

  A
 n

ov
el

ty
 v

eh
ic

le
 s

ha
ll 

on
ly

 b
e 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 a

s 
a 

pr
iv

at
e 

hi
re

 v
eh

ic
le

 if
 it

 c
om

pl
ie

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s:
 

   
V

eh
ic

le
s 

w
ith

 n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 8

 p
as

se
ng

er
 s

ea
ts

 a
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
on

 t
he

 V
5C

. 
T

he
 V

5C
 w

ill
 s

ta
te

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ea
ts

 a
nd

 m
u

st
 b

e 
p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

n
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e 

ve
h

ic
le

 b
ei

n
g

 li
ce

n
ce

d
 o

r 
in

sp
ec

te
d.

 If
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
ea

ts
 d

iff
er

s 
to

 
w

ha
t 

is
 in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 t

he
 V

5C
, 

th
en

 c
on

ta
ct

 V
O

S
A

 a
nd

 y
ou

r 
lo

ca
l a

re
a 

T
ra

ffi
c 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
. 

F
ai

lu
re

 t
o 

pr
od

uc
e 

a 
va

lid
 a

nd
 c

ur
re

nt
 V

5C
 fo

r 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
to

 b
e 

te
st

ed
 c

ou
ld

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
re

fu
sa

l t
o 

in
sp

ec
t t

he
 v

eh
ic

le
. 

 
 
 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 e
ith

er
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 W

ho
le

 V
eh

ic
le

 T
yp

e 
A

pp
ro

va
l (

E
C

W
V

T
A

) 
or

 S
in

gl
e 

V
eh

ic
le

 A
pp

ro
va

l (
S

V
A

) 
or

 
In

di
vi

du
al

 V
eh

ic
le

 A
pp

ro
va

l (
IV

A
) 

be
in

g 
pr

es
en

te
d 

fo
r 

in
sp

ec
tio

n.
  

   
Lo

ca
l 

lic
en

si
ng

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 
m

ay
 

co
ns

id
er

, 
as

 
no

ve
lty

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

ar
e 

no
t 

fa
ct

or
y 

pr
od

uc
ed

, 
th

at
 

a 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
ev

er
y 

10
 w

ee
ks

. 
T

he
 f

re
qu

en
cy

 o
f 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 i
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

 i
s 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
by

 T
ra

ffi
c 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
s,

 V
O

S
A

 a
nd

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l L
im

ou
si

ne
 a

nd
 C

ha
uf

fe
ur

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

(N
LC

A
).

  
   

T
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
st

an
da

rd
s 

to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 n
ov

el
ty

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
as

 t
ho

se
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 o
th

er
 h

ac
kn

ey
 c

ar
ria

ge
 

an
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

hi
re

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ad
di

tio
ns

: 
o
 

A
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 it

em
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
m

en
tio

ne
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 s
ea

tin
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

, 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 r

el
ev

an
t 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

. 
o
 

S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4 
– 

T
yr

es
 a

nd
 r

oa
dw

he
el

s.
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 in
 th

is
 s

ec
tio

n 
is

 m
ad

e 
to

 ty
re

 r
at

in
g 

to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 n
ov

el
ty

 v
eh

ic
le

s.
 

o
 

S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

12
 -

 V
eh

ic
le

 I
de

nt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
N

um
be

r 
(V

IN
).

 V
IN

 m
ar

ki
ng

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ch
ec

ke
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e,
 s

ea
tin

g 
ca

pa
ci

tie
s 

an
d 

un
du

e 
st

re
ss

es
.  

 Lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
st

ro
ng

ly
 a

dv
is

ed
 t

o 
ob

ta
in

 a
 d

ec
la

ra
tio

n,
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 o
pe

ra
to

r 
of

 a
 li

ce
ns

ed
 n

ov
el

ty
 v

eh
ic

le
, 

th
at

 t
he

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 w

ith
 s

id
e 

fa
ci

ng
 s

ea
ts

 w
ill

 n
ev

er
 b

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
ca

rr
y 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 u

nd
er

 1
6 

ye
ar

s 
of

 a
ge

, 
re

g
ar

d
le

ss
 o

f 
w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
ve

h
ic

le
 is

 f
it

te
d

 w
it

h
 o

r 
w

ith
o

u
t 

se
at

b
el

ts
.  

 

Page 32



 

P
ag

e 
8 

 

It 
is

 s
tr

on
gl

y 
ad

vi
se

d 
th

at
 n

ot
ic

es
 f

or
bi

dd
in

g 
ch

ild
re

n 
to

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

in
 s

id
e 

fa
ci

ng
 s

ea
ts

 a
re

 d
is

pl
ay

ed
 in

 p
ro

m
in

en
t 

po
si

tio
ns

, 
i.e

. 
on

 
en

tr
y 

to
 t

he
 p

as
se

ng
er

 c
om

pa
rt

m
en

t 
an

d 
on

 e
ith

er
 s

id
e 

of
 t

he
 p

as
se

ng
er

 c
om

pa
rt

m
en

t. 
Lo

ca
l l

ic
en

si
ng

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
re

qu
ire

 
ad

di
tio

na
l o

ut
w

ar
d 

fa
ci

ng
 s

ig
ns

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

al
l e

nt
ra

nc
e/

ex
it 

do
or

s 
to

 th
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
co

m
pa

rt
m

en
t. 

 3 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 

O
nl

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 c

om
pl

yi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

w
ill

 g
en

er
al

ly
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 fo
r 

lic
en

si
ng

 a
s 

pr
iv

at
e 

hi
re

 v
eh

ic
le

s:
 -

 
   

C
ar

s 
fit

te
d 

w
ith

 a
t l

ea
st

 fo
ur

 d
oo

rs
 a

nd
 fo

ur
 w

he
el

s.
 

 
 

R
ig

ht
-h

an
d 

dr
iv

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
 -

 w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 s
tr

et
ch

 li
m

ou
si

ne
s 

(w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

).
 

 
 

V
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ith
 a

de
qu

at
e 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r 
lu

gg
ag

e.
 

 
 

V
eh

ic
le

s 
m

us
t b

e 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
at

 le
as

t f
ou

r 
an

d 
no

t m
or

e 
th

an
 e

ig
ht

 p
as

se
ng

er
s 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

dr
iv

er
. 

 
 

W
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 s
tre

tc
h 

lim
ou

si
ne

s,
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 w
ith

 b
la

ck
ed

 o
ut

 w
in

do
w

s.
 P

as
se

ng
er

s 
be

in
g 

ca
rr

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
m

us
t b

e 
vi

si
bl

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
ou

ts
id

e.
 In

 e
xc

ep
tio

na
l c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 ti
nt

ed
 w

in
do

w
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
.  

   
T

o 
al

lo
w

 a
 t

ho
ro

ug
h 

ex
am

in
at

io
n 

of
 a

 v
eh

ic
le

 o
r 

an
y 

pa
rt

 t
he

re
of

, 
it 

m
us

t 
be

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 f

or
 t

es
t 

in
 a

 c
le

an
 c

on
di

tio
n.

 T
he

 v
eh

ic
le

 
pr

es
en

te
d,

 w
ill

 f
ai

l t
he

 t
es

t 
if,

 in
 t

he
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

f 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ex

am
in

er
, 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

is
 s

o 
di

rt
y 

th
at

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

un
re

as
on

ab
le

 f
or

 t
he

 
te

st
 to

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t. 

   
A

 te
st

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t u

nl
es

s 
th

e 
Li

ce
ns

e 
fe

e/
E

xa
m

in
at

io
n 

F
ee

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pa

id
 in

 a
dv

an
ce

. 

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 U

n
d

er
ta

ki
n

g
s 

an
d

 D
ec

la
ra

ti
o

n
: 

In
 t

he
 in

te
re

st
s 

of
 r

oa
d 

an
d 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
sa

fe
ty

, 
th

e 
lic

en
ce

d 
op

er
at

or
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 s

o 
th

at
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

ar
e 

ke
pt

 in
 a

 r
oa

dw
or

th
y 

co
nd

iti
on

 a
t a

ll 
tim

es
.  

 
 

      

Page 33



 

P
ag

e 
9 

 

A
C

K
N

O
W

L
E

D
G

E
M

E
N

TS
 

 
N

am
e 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

 
D

on
 A

lli
so

n 
Lu

to
n 

B
C

 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 M
an

ag
er

 
P

hi
l C

lif
fo

rd
 

S
t. 

E
dm

un
ds

bu
ry

 B
C

 
F

le
et

 &
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 M
an

ag
er

 
C

hr
is

 R
ua

ne
 

F
re

ig
ht

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
S

ec
to

r 
H

ea
d 

P
ub

lic
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 W

as
te

, U
til

iti
es

, 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

&
 P

la
nt

 
A

nd
y 

M
ai

r 
F

re
ig

ht
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

H
ea

d 
of

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

B
ar

ry
 P

ea
rs

on
 

S
ta

ffo
rd

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ec

hn
ic

al
 O

ffi
ce

r 
S

im
on

 S
m

ith
  

Lu
to

n 
B

C
 

F
le

et
 M

an
ag

er
 

D
er

ek
 R

oo
ke

r 
B

ar
ns

le
y 

M
B

C
 

F
le

et
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

D
av

e 
M

oy
le

 
V

al
e 

of
 G

la
m

or
ga

n 
W

or
ks

ho
ps

 S
up

er
vi

so
r 

B
ar

ry
 R

ic
ha

rd
s 

B
at

h 
&

 N
or

th
 E

as
t S

om
er

se
t C

ou
nc

il 
S

er
vi

ce
 T

ea
m

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 F

le
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

K
ev

in
 S

pi
er

s 
O

xf
or

d 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 W
or

ks
ho

p 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

K
en

 S
to

ne
 

Li
ve

rp
oo

l C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
rin

ci
pa

l L
ic

en
si

ng
 O

ffi
ce

r 
D

av
e 

C
ol

lig
an

 
Li

ve
rp

oo
l C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
P

rin
ci

pa
l E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t O

ffi
ce

r 
M

ar
te

n 
P

le
ad

en
 

W
al

sa
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

V
eh

ic
le

 E
xa

m
in

er
 

M
ar

tin
 H

am
er

 
C

ity
 o

f B
ra

df
or

d 
M

D
C

 
P

rin
ci

pa
l L

ic
en

si
ng

 O
ffi

ce
r 

P
au

l D
ib

b 
C

ity
 o

f B
ra

df
or

d 
M

D
C

 
W

or
ks

ho
p 

M
an

ag
er

 
A

da
m

 S
na

pe
 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

C
 

F
le

et
 M

an
ag

er
 

Ja
m

ie
 R

ob
so

n 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 C
C

 
 

B
re

nd
an

 M
cN

am
ar

a 
C

ity
 o

f W
ak

ef
ie

ld
 M

D
C

 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 M

an
ag

er
 

R
od

 D
ar

to
n 

C
hi

ch
es

te
r 

D
C

 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 D
ire

ct
or

 C
on

ta
ct

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Jo

hn
 H

oo
le

 
C

hi
ch

es
te

r 
D

C
 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 M

an
ag

er
 

D
av

e 
P

ik
e 

V
al

e 
of

 G
la

m
or

ga
n 

W
or

ks
ho

p 
F

or
em

an
 

K
ei

th
 M

ill
er

 
M

ilt
on

 K
ey

ne
s 

C
ou

nc
il 

F
le

et
 M

an
ag

er
 

K
ev

in
 L

ew
is

 
N

ea
th

 &
 P

or
t T

al
bo

t C
B

C
 

F
le

et
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
up

er
vi

so
r 

Ji
m

 S
ul

liv
an

 
N

ea
th

 &
 P

or
t T

al
bo

t C
B

C
 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
M

an
ag

er
 

Jo
hn

 W
eb

b 
S

al
is

bu
ry

 D
C

 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

P
au

l S
tr

et
fo

rd
 

W
ilt

sh
ire

 C
C

 
F

le
et

 G
ro

up
 

M
ik

e 
T

on
ks

 
S

al
is

bu
ry

 D
C

 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 M
an

ag
er

 
R

ob
 A

rm
ey

 
W

ilt
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
F

le
et

 In
sp

ec
to

r 

Page 34



 

P
ag

e 
10

 
 

 
  

B
E

S
T

 P
R

A
C

T
IC

E
 G

U
ID

E
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 IN

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 H

A
C

K
N

E
Y

 
C

A
R

R
IA

G
E

 &
 P

R
IV

A
T

E
 H

IR
E

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

S
 

 
P

A
R

T
 2

 
 

P
R

O
C

E
D

U
R

E
S

 &
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 O
F

 IN
S

P
E

C
T

IO
N

  
            

T
hi

s 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

gu
id

e 
se

ts
 o

ut
 th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
nd

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
f h

ac
kn

ey
 c

ar
ria

ge
 &

 p
riv

at
e 

hi
re

 
ve

hi
cl

es
. 

It 
is

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 th

e 
gu

id
e 

is
 a

ls
o 

m
ad

e 
fr

ee
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 o
w

ne
rs

, p
ro

pr
ie

to
rs

, o
pe

ra
to

rs
 a

nd
 d

riv
er

s 
of

 h
ac

kn
ey

 c
ar

ria
ge

 &
 

pr
iv

at
e 

hi
re

 v
eh

ic
le

s,
 w

ho
 m

ay
 fi

nd
 it

 u
se

fu
l a

s 
it 

de
ta

ils
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

th
at

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
ar

e 
su

bj
ec

te
d 

to
. T

he
 g

ui
de

 a
ls

o 
ex

pl
ai

ns
 th

e 
re

as
on

s 
w

hy
, a

 v
eh

ic
le

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 fo

r 
in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
is

su
ed

 w
ith

 a
 p

as
s 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
. 

 

Page 35



 

P
ag

e 
11

 
 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 
 

 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 
 

S
u

b
je

ct
 

 
P

ag
e 

N
u

m
b

er
 

 
1 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 a
n

d 
si

g
n

al
lin

g 
eq

u
ip

m
en

t:
 

1.
3 

S
to

p 
La

m
ps

 –
 H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l S
to

p 
La

m
ps

 
1.

8 
E

le
ct

ric
al

 W
iri

ng
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
1.

9 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 L
am

ps
 

 

13
 

14
 

15
 

16
 

2 
S

te
er

in
g

: 
2.

1 
S

te
er

in
g 

C
on

tr
ol

 –
 S

te
er

in
g 

W
he

el
 

2.
1 

S
te

er
in

g 
C

on
tr

ol
 –

 S
te

er
in

g 
C

ol
um

n 
2.

4 
S

us
pe

ns
io

n 
S

pr
in

g 
U

ni
ts

 &
 L

in
ka

ge
 

 

18
 

19
 

20
 

21
 

3 
B

ra
ke

s:
 

N
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
 

22
 

4 
T

yr
es

 &
 R

o
ad

w
h

ee
ls

: 
 

4.
1 

T
yr

es
 -

 C
on

di
tio

n 
 

 

23
 

24
  

5 
S

ea
t 

B
el

ts
: 

N
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
 

25
 

6 
B

o
d

y 
&

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

: 
6.

1 
V

eh
ic

le
 B

od
y 

an
d 

C
on

di
tio

n 
– 

(E
xt

er
io

r)
 

6.
1 

 
V

eh
ic

le
 B

od
y,

 S
ec

ur
ity

 a
nd

 C
on

di
tio

n 
– 

(I
nt

er
io

r)
 

6.
2 

D
oo

rs
 a

nd
 S

ea
ts

 
6.

5 
B

um
pe

r 
B

ar
s 

26
 

27
 

28
 

30
 

32
 

7 
F

u
el

 &
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s:

 
7.

1 
 

E
xh

au
st

 S
ys

te
m

 
7.

2 
F

ue
l S

ys
te

m
 –

 P
ip

es
 &

 T
an

ks
 

 

33
 

34
 

35
 

Page 36



 

P
ag

e 
12

 
 

8     

D
ri

ve
rs

 V
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
R

oa
d

: 
8.

1 
M

irr
or

s 
8.

3 
W

in
ds

cr
ee

n 
– 

V
ie

w
 to

p 
th

e 
F

ro
nt

 
8.

5 
W

in
do

w
 G

la
ss

 o
r 

O
th

er
 T

ra
ns

pa
re

nt
 M

at
er

ia
l 

 

36
 

37
 

38
 

39
 

9 
Tr

ic
yc

le
s 

&
 Q

u
ad

ri
cy

cl
es

 
N

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

 

40
 

10
 

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

: 
10

.1
 

S
pe

ed
om

et
er

 
10

.2
 

T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 

10
.3

 
E

ng
in

e 
&

 T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 M

ou
nt

in
gs

 
10

.4
   

   
 O

il 
&

 W
at

er
 L

ea
ks

 
10

.5
 

Lu
gg

ag
e/

Lo
ad

 S
pa

ce
 

10
.6

 
T

ra
ile

rs
 &

 T
ow

ba
rs

  
 

41
 

42
 

43
 

45
 

46
 

47
 

48
 

11
 

A
n

ci
lla

ry
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t:

 
11

.1
 

W
he

el
ch

ai
r 

R
es

tr
ai

nt
 &

 A
cc

es
s 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

11
.2

 
F

ire
 E

xt
in

gu
is

he
r 

11
.3

   
   

  F
irs

t A
id

 K
it 

 

49
 

50
 

52
 

53
 

12
 

N
o

ve
lt

y 
V

eh
ic

le
s:

 
12

.1
 

V
eh

ic
le

 Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
N

um
be

r 
(V

IN
) 

12
.2

 
S

ea
tin

g 
C

ap
ac

ity
 

12
.3

 
U

nd
ue

 S
tr

es
se

s 
12

.4
   

   
 P

as
se

ng
er

 N
ot

ic
es

 

54
 

55
 

56
 

57
 

58
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 

‘A
’ 

 H
ac

kn
ey

 C
ar

ri
ag

e 
&

 P
ri

va
te

 H
ir

e 
- 

Tr
ai

le
r 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n 

S
h

ee
t 

 
 

 59
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 

‘B
’ 

 D
ef

in
it

io
n 

o
f M

o
to

r 
V

eh
ic

le
s 

 

 60
 

 

Page 37



 

P
ag

e 
13

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
 -

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
 S

IG
N

A
L

L
IN

G
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 

   S
ec

ti
o

n
 C

o
nt

en
ts

: 
 S

u
b

-s
ec

ti
o

n 
 

S
u

b
je

ct
 

  1.
3 

 
 

 
S

to
p 

La
m

ps
 –

 H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l S

to
p 

La
m

ps
 

 1.
8 

 
 

 
E

le
ct

ric
al

 W
iri

ng
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
 1.

9 
 

 
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 L

am
ps

 
 

• 
R

ev
er

si
ng

 L
am

ps
 

 
• 

F
ro

nt
 F

og
/D

riv
in

g 
La

m
ps

 
 

• 
F

or
 H

ire
 a

nd
 R

oo
f S

ig
ns

 
             

Page 38



 

P
ag

e 
14

 
 

1.
3.

   
S

TO
P

 L
A

M
P

S
 -

 H
IG

H
 L

E
V

E
L

 S
TO

P
 L

A
M

P
S

 
  M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 A

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
to

p 
la

m
ps

 f
itt

ed
 a

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
ed

 m
us

t 
be

 t
es

te
d.

 
W

he
re

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l 

st
op

 l
am

ps
 a

re
 f

itt
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

re
 i

s 
do

ub
t 

as
 t

o 
w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 a

re
 c

on
ne

ct
ed

, t
he

 b
en

ef
it 

of
 th

is
 d

ou
bt

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 g

iv
en

 
to

 th
e 

pr
es

en
te

r.
 

 C
he

ck
 th

e 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l s

to
p 

la
m

p 
w

he
re

 fi
tte

d:
 

 a.
 

Is
 n

ot
 o

bs
cu

re
d,

 a
nd

 is
 n

ot
 o

bv
io

us
ly

 in
co

rr
ec

tly
 p

os
iti

on
ed

. 
 b.

 
A

t l
ea

st
 5

0%
 o

f t
he

 la
m

p 
m

us
t b

e 
vi

si
bl

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
re

ar
. 

  

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

      H
ig

h 
le

ve
l s

to
p 

la
m

p 
 a.

 
O

bs
cu

re
d 

or
 o

bv
io

us
ly

 in
co

rr
ec

tly
 p

os
iti

on
ed

. 
 b.

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 5

0%
 o

f t
he

 la
m

p 
no

t w
or

ki
ng

 o
r 

ob
sc

ur
ed

 
      

             

Page 39



 

P
ag

e 
15

 
 

1.
8.

   
 E

L
E

C
TR

IC
A

L
 W

IR
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

  M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 T
hi

s 
ex

am
in

at
io

n 
is

 l
im

ite
d 

to
 t

ha
t 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 s

ys
te

m
 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

re
ad

ily
 s

ee
n 

w
ith

ou
t 

di
sm

an
tli

ng
 a

ny
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 
 a.

 
C

he
ck

 a
ll 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 w

iri
ng

 fo
r:

 
o
 

C
on

di
tio

n 
 

o
 

S
ec

ur
ity

 
 

o
 

P
os

iti
on

 
   

o
 

S
ig

ns
 o

f o
ve

rh
ea

tin
g 

 
o
 

H
ea

vy
 o

il 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n 

 b.
 

B
at

te
ry

 a
nd

 c
ar

rie
r 

fo
r:

 
o
 

S
ec

ur
ity

 
 

o
 

B
at

te
ry

 fo
r 

le
ak

s 
 c.

 
C

he
ck

 a
ll 

sw
itc

he
s 

co
nt

ro
lli

ng
 a

ll 
ob

lig
at

or
y 

lig
ht

s 
 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

     a.
 

W
iri

ng
 

o
 

N
ot

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

in
su

la
te

d 

o
 

N
ot

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

se
cu

re
d 

o
 

P
os

iti
on

ed
 s

o 
th

at
 it

 is
 c

ha
fin

g 
or

 c
lip

pe
d 

to
 a

 fu
el

 li
ne

 o
r 

lik
el

y 
to

 
be

 
da

m
ag

ed
 b

y 
he

at
 

so
 

th
at

 
in

su
la

tio
n 

w
ill

 
be

co
m

e 
in

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 

o
 

W
ith

 c
le

ar
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 o

ve
rh

ea
tin

g 

o
 

H
ea

vi
ly

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 w

ith
 o

il 
 b.

 
B

at
te

ry
 a

nd
 c

ar
rie

r:
 

o
 

A
 b

at
te

ry
 a

nd
 /o

r 
ca

rr
ie

r 
no

t s
ec

ur
e 

an
d 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

   
   

   
   

 
di

sp
la

ce
d 

o
 

B
at

te
ry

 le
ak

in
g 

 
c.

 
In

se
cu

rit
y 

or
 

m
al

fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 

a 
sw

itc
h 

co
nt

ro
lli

ng
 

an
   

ob
lig

at
or

y 
lig

ht
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

    

Page 40



 

P
ag

e 
16

 
 

1.
9.

 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 L

A
M

P
S

 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 W

ith
 th

e 
ig

ni
tio

n 
sw

itc
he

d 
on

 c
he

ck
: 

 R
ev

er
si

ng
 la

m
ps

 
 a.

 
T

he
 r

ev
er

si
ng

 l
am

ps
 e

m
it 

a 
di

ffu
se

d 
w

hi
te

 l
ig

ht
 w

he
n 

re
ve

rs
e 

ge
ar

 is
 s

el
ec

te
d.

 
 

b.
 

T
he

 la
m

ps
 e

xt
in

gu
is

h 
w

he
n 

ne
ut

ra
l g

ea
r 

is
 s

el
ec

te
d 

 
c.

 
T

he
 la

m
ps

 a
re

 in
 g

oo
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
rd

er
 a

nd
 a

re
 s

ec
ur

e.
  

 
d.

 
T

he
 la

m
ps

 d
o 

no
t f

lic
ke

r 
w

he
n 

lig
ht

ly
 ta

pp
ed

 b
y 

ha
nd

. 
 

F
ro

nt
 F

og
/D

riv
in

g 
La

m
ps

 
C

he
ck

 th
at

: 
 e.

 
A

 s
in

gl
e 

fr
on

t 
fo

g 
la

m
p 

em
itt

in
g 

a 
w

hi
te

 o
r 

ye
llo

w
 d

iff
us

ed
 l

ig
ht

 
ill

um
in

at
es

 o
nl

y 
w

he
n 

di
pp

ed
 b

ea
m

 is
 s

el
ec

te
d 

 f. 
A

 p
ai

r 
of

 m
at

ch
ed

 f
og

 l
am

ps
 b

ot
h 

em
itt

in
g 

a 
w

hi
te

 o
r 

ye
llo

w
 

di
ffu

se
d 

lig
ht

 s
ho

ul
d 

ill
um

in
at

e 
to

ge
th

er
 

 g.
 

A
 p

ai
r 

of
 m

at
ch

ed
, 

lo
ng

-r
an

ge
 d

riv
in

g 
la

m
ps

, 
bo

th
 e

m
itt

in
g 

a 
w

hi
te

 d
iff

us
ed

 li
gh

t s
ho

ul
d 

ill
um

in
at

e 
to

ge
th

er
. 

 
      

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

   A
 r

ev
er

si
ng

 la
m

p:
 

 a.
 

T
ha

t f
ai

ls
 to

 o
pe

ra
te

 o
r 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
m

it 
a 

w
hi

te
 d

iff
us

ed
 li

gh
t 

 
 b.

 
F

ai
ls

 to
 e

xt
in

gu
is

h 
w

he
n 

ne
ut

ra
l o

r 
fo

rw
ar

d 
ge

ar
 is

 s
el

ec
te

d 

c.
 

A
re

 n
ot

 in
 g

oo
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
rd

er
 o

r 
in

se
cu

re
. 

d.
 

La
m

ps
 fl

ic
ke

r 
w

he
n 

ta
pp

ed
 li

gh
tly

 b
y 

ha
nd

. 

F
ro

nt
 F

og
/D

riv
in

g 
La

m
ps

 

e.
 

La
m

p 
in

op
er

at
iv

e 
or

 o
pe

ra
te

s 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 in
 d

ip
pe

d 
be

am
 m

od
e 

 f. 
La

m
ps

 o
pe

ra
te

 in
co

rr
ec

tly
 

g.
 

La
m

ps
 o

pe
ra

te
 in

co
rr

ec
tly

 

      

Page 41



 

P
ag

e 
17

 
 

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 L

am
p

s 
(c

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

) 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 ‘F

or
 H

ire
’ a

nd
 R

oo
f S

ig
ns

 
 C

he
ck

 th
at

: 
 a.

 
C

or
re

ct
 s

ty
le

 a
nd

 ty
pe

 o
f s

ig
n 

fit
te

d.
 

b.
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

si
gn

 is
 s

ec
ur

el
y 

fa
st

en
ed

 to
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
c.

 
C

he
ck

 c
on

di
tio

n 
an

d 
se

cu
rit

y 
of

 w
iri

ng
  

d.
 

F
un

ct
io

na
l t

es
t o

f s
ig

ns
 fo

r 
ill

um
in

at
io

n 

    

 R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

   ‘F
or

 H
ire

’ a
nd

 R
oo

f S
ig

ns
 

   a.
 I

nc
or

re
ct

 c
ol

ou
r 

or
 d

et
ai

ls
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 s
ig

n,
 i.

e.
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

nu
m

be
r,

 
ve

hi
cl

e 
nu

m
be

r 
et

c.
  

b.
 I

ns
ec

ur
e 

si
gn

 
c.

 W
iri

ng
 is

 n
ot

 in
 g

oo
d 

co
nd

iti
on

 a
nd

 is
 lo

os
e 

or
 c

ha
ffe

d 
d.

 I
llu

m
in

at
io

n 
no

t 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

si
gn

, 
i.e

. 
al

l 
lig

ht
 b

ul
b(

s)
 

LE
D

(s
) 

ill
um

in
at

ed
 w

he
n 

sw
itc

he
d 

on
. 

                

Page 42



 

P
ag

e 
18

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
 -

 S
T

E
E

R
IN

G
 

   S
ec

ti
o

n
 C

o
nt

en
ts

: 
 S

u
b

-s
ec

ti
o

n 
 

S
u

b
je

ct
 

  2.
1 

 
 

 
S

te
er

in
g 

C
on

tr
ol

 –
 S

te
er

in
g 

W
he

el
 

 2.
1 

 
 

 
S

te
er

in
g 

C
on

tr
ol

 –
 S

te
er

in
g 

C
ol

um
n 

 2.
4 

 
 

 
S

us
pe

ns
io

n 
S

pr
in

g 
U

ni
ts

 a
nd

 L
in

ka
ge

s 
                  

Page 43



 

P
ag

e 
19

 
 

2.
1 

S
TE

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
TR

O
L

 -
 S

TE
E

R
IN

G
 W

H
E

E
L

 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 W

ith
 b

ot
h 

ha
nd

s 
ro

ck
 t

he
 s

te
er

in
g 

w
he

el
 f

ro
m

 s
id

e 
to

 s
id

e 
at

 r
ig

ht
 

an
gl

es
 t

o 
st

ee
rin

g 
co

lu
m

n 
an

d 
ap

pl
y 

sl
ig

ht
 d

ow
nw

ar
d 

an
d 

up
w

ar
d 

pr
es

su
re

 to
 th

e 
st

ee
rin

g 
w

he
el

 r
im

 (
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 c
ol

um
n)

. N
ot

e:
 

 a.
 

F
ra

ct
ur

es
 in

 s
te

er
in

g 
w

he
el

 h
ub

. 
 b.

 
F

ra
ct

ur
es

 in
 s

te
er

in
g 

w
he

el
 r

im
. 

 c.
 

S
te

er
in

g 
w

he
el

 s
po

ke
s 

lo
os

e 
or

 fr
ac

tu
re

d.
 

 d.
 

Ja
gg

ed
 e

dg
es

 o
n 

st
ee

rin
g 

w
he

el
 r

im
. 

 e.
 

If 
po

ss
ib

le
, c

he
ck

 th
e 

re
ta

in
in

g 
de

vi
ce

 o
n 

st
ee

rin
g 

w
he

el
 is

 fi
tte

d.
 

  

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

     a.
 S

te
er

in
g 

w
he

el
 h

ub
 fr

ac
tu

re
d.

 
 

b.
 S

te
er

in
g 

w
he

el
 r

im
 fr

ac
tu

re
d.

 
 

c.
 A

 s
te

er
in

g 
w

he
el

 s
po

ke
 lo

os
e 

or
 fr

ac
tu

re
d.

 
 

d.
 J

ag
ge

d 
ed

ge
s 

on
 s

te
er

in
g 

w
he

el
 r

im
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

in
ju

re
 t

he
 

dr
iv

er
. 

 e.
 

A
 s

te
er

in
g 

w
he

el
 h

ub
-r

et
ai

ni
ng

 d
ev

ic
e 

no
t f

itt
ed

. 

              

Page 44



 

P
ag

e 
20

 
 

2.
1 

S
TE

E
R

IN
G

 C
O

N
TR

O
L

 -
 S

TE
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
L

U
M

N
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a.
 

T
ry

 t
o 

lif
t 

th
e 

st
ee

rin
g 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 t

he
 s

te
er

in
g 

co
lu

m
n 

an
d 

no
te

 
th

e 
m

ov
em

en
t a

t c
en

tr
e 

of
 s

te
er

in
g 

w
he

el
.  

     b.
 

P
us

h 
st

ee
rin

g 
w

he
el

 a
w

ay
 a

nd
 th

en
 p

ul
l i

t t
ow

ar
ds

 y
ou

. N
ot

e 
an

y 
si

de
 p

la
y.

 
 c.

 
W

hi
le

 s
te

er
in

g 
w

he
el

 i
s 

ro
ta

te
d,

 c
he

ck
 f

or
 d

et
er

io
ra

tio
n 

in
 a

ny
 

fle
xi

bl
e 

co
up

lin
g 

or
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 jo
in

t o
f s

te
er

in
g 

co
lu

m
n.

 
 d.

 
W

he
re

 
pr

ac
tic

al
, 

ch
ec

k 
an

y 
cl

am
p 

bo
lts

 
fo

r 
pr

es
en

ce
 

an
d 

se
cu

rit
y 

of
 lo

ck
in

g 
de

vi
ce

s.
 (

T
he

se
 m

ay
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

en
gi

ne
 

co
m

pa
rt

m
en

t o
r 

un
de

r 
ch

as
si

s)
. 

   

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a.
 

E
xc

es
si

ve
 m

ov
em

en
t 

of
 c

en
tr

e 
of

 s
te

er
in

g 
w

he
el

 i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 
st

ee
rin

g 
co

lu
m

n 
(e

nd
 fl

oa
t)

. 
 N

o
te

: 
 C

er
ta

in
 ty

pe
s 

of
 s

te
er

in
g 

co
lu

m
n 

m
ig

ht
 s

ho
w

 s
om

e 
m

ov
em

en
t 

no
t 

du
e 

to
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 w
ea

r,
 e

.g
. 

th
os

e 
fit

te
d 

w
ith

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 j

oi
nt

s 
or

 
fle

xi
bl

e 
co

up
lin

gs
 

b.
 

E
xc

es
si

ve
 s

id
e 

pl
ay

 in
di

ca
tin

g 
w

or
n 

to
p 

be
ar

in
gs

 o
r 

in
se

cu
re

 to
p 

m
ou

nt
in

g 
br

ac
ke

t. 

c.
 

A
 

fle
xi

bl
e 

co
up

lin
g 

or
 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
jo

in
t 

de
te

rio
ra

te
d,

 
w

or
n 

or
 

in
se

cu
re

. 

d.
 

A
 c

ou
pl

in
g 

cl
am

p 
bo

lt 
or

 lo
ck

in
g 

de
vi

ce
 lo

os
e 

or
 m

is
si

ng
. 

  

           

Page 45



 

P
ag

e 
21

 
 

2.
4 

  S
U

S
P

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
R

IN
G

 U
N

IT
S

 A
N

D
 L

IN
K

A
G

E
S

  
  M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 C

o
il 

S
pr

in
g

s 
 a.

 
W

el
di

ng
 r

ep
ai

rs
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

   a.
 

R
ep

ai
re

d 
by

 w
el

di
ng

 
    

                     

Page 46



 

P
ag

e 
22

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
 -

 B
R

A
K

E
S

 
   S

ec
ti

o
n

 C
o

nt
en

ts
: 

 S
u

b
-s

ec
ti

o
n 

 
S

u
b

je
ct

 
  N

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
  

                       

Page 47



 

P
ag

e 
23

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 4
 –

 T
Y

R
E

S
 &

 R
O

A
D

W
H

E
E

L
S

  
   S

ec
ti

o
n

 C
o

nt
en

ts
: 

 S
u

b
-s

ec
ti

o
n 

 
S

u
b

je
ct

 
  4.

1 
 

 
 

T
yr

es
 –

 C
on

di
tio

n 
  

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
                    

Page 48



 

P
ag

e 
24

 
 

4.
1 

TY
R

E
S

  
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n 

o
f 

T
yr

es
 

  O
n 

al
l 

th
e 

ty
re

s,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
pa

re
 w

he
el

 -
 w

h
er

e 
fi

tt
ed

, 
ex

am
in

e 
ea

ch
 t

yr
e 

m
ee

ts
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 l

ai
d 

do
w

n 
in

 t
he

 M
O

T
 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
M

an
ua

l f
or

 C
ar

 &
 L

ig
ht

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
(I

S
B

N
 0

-
95

49
23

9-
0-

1)
 

  N
o

te
 1

  
W

he
re

 a
 d

ou
gh

nu
t 

ta
nk

 i
s 

fit
te

d 
in

 t
he

 b
oo

t 
fo

r 
LP

G
, 

th
e 

sp
ar

e 
w

he
el

 
if 

st
ill

 
ca

rr
ie

d 
in

 
th

e 
bo

ot
 

m
us

t 
be

 
pr

op
er

ly
 

se
cu

re
d.

 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

el
y,

 a
 s

pa
re

 w
he

el
 c

ag
e 

in
st

al
le

d 
to

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

rs
 a

nd
 

B
rit

is
h 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 m

ay
 b

e 
fit

te
d 

to
 th

e 
un

de
rs

id
e 

of
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e.
 

  S
P

E
C

IA
L

 N
O

TI
C

E
 –

 S
T

R
E

T
C

H
E

D
 L

IM
O

U
S

IN
E

S
: 

In
 

th
e 

ca
se

 
o

f 
A

m
er

ic
an

 
im

p
or

te
d

 
st

re
tc

he
d

 
lim

o
u

si
n

es
, 

ve
h

ic
le

 i
n

sp
ec

to
rs

 w
ill

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 
vi

g
ila

n
t 

w
h

en
 i

n
sp

ec
ti

n
g 

ty
re

s 
fo

r 
su

it
ab

ili
ty

. M
o

st
 c

o
n

ve
rt

ed
 s

tr
et

ch
ed

 li
m

o
u

si
n

es
 a

re
 

co
n

ve
rt

ed
 f

ro
m

 F
o

rd
 L

in
co

ln
 T

ow
n 

C
ar

s 
w

ith
 a

 n
um

b
er

 o
f 

C
ad

ill
ac

 v
ar

ia
n

ts
 a

ls
o.

  
In

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 ‘
st

re
tc

h’
 l

im
o

u
si

n
e 

co
n

ve
rs

io
n

s,
 t

h
e 

m
ax

im
um

 
w

ei
g

ht
 

is
 

ap
p

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

7,
10

0l
b

s 
(3

.2
to

n
ne

s)
 

an
d

 
ca

re
 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

ex
er

ci
se

d
 w

h
en

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g
 s

u
it

ab
le

 t
yr

e 
ra

ti
n

g
s.

 
G

en
er

al
ly

 s
p

ea
ki

n
g

 a
 F

o
rd

 L
in

co
ln

 o
r 

C
ad

ill
ac

 w
o

u
ld

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
a 

ty
re

 r
at

in
g

 in
d

ex
 o

f 
at

 le
as

t 
10

7 
T,

 w
hi

ch
 g

iv
es

 a
 lo

ad
 r

at
in

g 
o

f 
2,

14
9 

lb
s 

(9
75

 k
g

s)
 w

ith
 a

 m
ax

im
u

m
 s

p
ee

d
 o

f 
11

8 
m

ile
s 

p
er

 h
o

u
r.

  
 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

   In
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
  

M
O

T
 I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
M

an
ua

l f
or

 C
ar

 &
 L

ig
ht

 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 V

eh
ic

le
s 

(I
S

B
N

 0
-9

54
92

39
-0

-1
)  

   N
o

te
 2

  
S

pa
ce

 s
av

er
 t

yr
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

on
ly

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 s
up

po
rt

 o
f 

a 
m

et
ho

d 
st

at
em

en
t 

hi
gh

lig
ht

in
g 

dr
iv

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 s

pe
ed

 a
nd

 t
ha

t 
sp

ac
e 

sa
ve

rs
 a

re
 a

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 ‘g
et

-y
ou

-h
om

e 
ty

re
’. 

  S
TR

E
T

C
H

E
D

 L
IM

O
U

S
IN

E
S

 
M

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t o
f s

ui
ta

bl
e 

ty
re

s 
ca

n 
be

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fr

om
: 

N
or

th
 H

an
ts

 T
yr

es
 &

 W
he

el
s,

 
H

en
ry

 J
oh

n 
H

ou
se

 
2 

Iv
y 

R
oa

d,
 

A
ld

er
sh

ot
 

G
U

12
 4

T
X

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
el

ep
ho

ne
: 0

12
52

 3
18

66
6 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
O

R
 

 
N

at
io

na
l L

im
ou

si
ne

 &
 C

ha
uf

fe
ur

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

on
: w

w
w

.n
lc

a.
co

.u
k 

 

 

Page 49



 

P
ag

e 
25

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 5
 –

 S
E

A
T

 B
E

L
T

S
 

   S
ec

ti
o

n
 C

o
nt

en
ts

: 
 S

u
b

-s
ec

ti
o

n 
 

S
u

b
je

ct
 

  N
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
                       

Page 50



 

P
ag

e 
26

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 6
 –

 B
O

D
Y

 A
N

D
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 
   S

ec
ti

o
n

 C
o

nt
en

ts
: 

 S
u

b
-s

ec
ti

o
n 

 
S

u
b

je
ct

 
  6.

1 
 

 
 

V
eh

ic
le

 B
od

y 
an

d 
C

on
di

tio
n 

– 
(E

xt
er

io
r)

  
 6.

1 
 

 
 

 
V

eh
ic

le
 B

od
y,

 S
ec

ur
ity

 a
nd

 C
on

di
tio

n 
– 

(I
nt

er
io

r)
 

 6.
2 

 
 

 
D

oo
rs

 a
nd

 S
ea

ts
 

 6.
4 

 
 

 
B

um
pe

r 
B

ar
s 

                 

Page 51



 

P
ag

e 
27

 
 

6.
1 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 B
O

D
Y

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

 –
 (

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

) 
 

 
M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 B

o
d

y 
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

  (
E

xt
er

io
r)

 
E

xa
m

in
e 

th
e 

bo
dy

 t
ho

ro
ug

hl
y 

fo
r 

se
cu

rit
y,

 c
or

ro
si

on
, 

da
m

ag
e,

 
po

or
 r

ep
ai

r/
pa

in
t 

m
at

ch
 o

r 
sh

ar
p 

ed
ge

s 
th

at
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

ca
us

e 
in

ju
ry

. 
                         

R
ea

so
n

 F
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 B
o

d
y 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
  (

E
xt

er
io

r)
 

a.
 

A
n 

in
se

cu
re

 o
r 

m
is

si
ng

 b
od

y 
pa

ne
l, 

tr
im

, s
te

p 
or

 a
cc

es
so

ry
. 

b.
 

 A
ny

 s
ha

rp
 e

dg
e 

w
ha

ts
oe

ve
r 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 c

au
se

 in
ju

ry
. 

c.
 

H
ea

vy
 s

cu
ffi

ng
, 

ab
ra

si
on

s 
or

 d
ef

or
m

at
io

n 
to

 f
ro

nt
 a

nd
 r

ea
r 

bu
m

pe
r.

 
d.

 
M

or
e 

th
an

 8
 s

to
ne

 c
hi

ps
 v

is
ib

le
 o

n 
a 

bo
nn

et
/g

ril
l t

ha
t h

as
 n

ot
 

pe
ne

tr
at

ed
 to

 th
e 

m
et

al
 o

r 
m

or
e 

th
an

 4
 s

to
ne

 c
hi

ps
 th

at
 h

av
e 

pe
ne

tr
at

ed
 to

 th
e 

m
et

al
. 

e.
 

M
or

e 
th

an
 8

 s
to

ne
 c

hi
ps

 o
n 

an
y 

pa
ne

l i
nc

lu
di

ng
 d

oo
r 

ed
ge

s,
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
e 

ba
se

 c
oa

t h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
pe

ne
tr

at
ed

. 
f. 

M
or

e 
th

an
 4

 s
to

ne
 c

hi
ps

 o
n 

an
y 

pa
ne

l w
he

re
 t

he
 b

as
e 

co
at

 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

en
et

ra
te

d 
to

 th
e 

m
et

al
 a

nd
 is

 u
nt

re
at

ed
. 

g.
 

A
 s

in
gl

e 
de

nt
 o

f 
m

or
e 

th
an

 8
0m

m
, 

or
 m

or
e 

th
an

 3
 d

en
ts

 o
f 

no
t m

or
e 

th
an

 2
0m

m
 in

 a
ny

 o
ne

 p
an

el
 

h.
 

M
or

e 
th

an
 4

 s
cr

at
ch

es
 a

nd
 o

r 
ab

ra
si

on
s 

of
 m

or
e 

th
an

 5
0m

m
 

in
 l

en
gt

h 
in

 a
ny

 o
ne

 p
an

el
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 b
as

e 
co

at
 h

as
 

no
t b

ee
n 

pe
ne

tr
at

ed
. 

i. 
D

ul
l, 

fa
de

d 
pa

in
tw

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 lo

st
 it

s 
gl

os
s 

fin
is

h 
or

 p
ai

nt
 

m
is

s 
m

at
ch

 t
o 

a 
pa

ne
l(s

) 
to

 s
uc

h 
an

 e
xt

en
t 

th
at

 i
t 

de
tr

ac
ts

 
fr

om
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e.
 

j. 
E

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 p

oo
r 

re
pa

irs
 a

nd
 o

r 
pa

in
t 

fin
is

h 
to

 a
 r

ep
ai

re
d 

pa
ne

l(s
) 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ru

ns
 

an
d 

ov
er

sp
ra

y 
to

 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

pa
ne

ls
/tr

im
 t

ha
t 

de
tr

ac
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 
k.

 
O

bv
io

us
 s

ig
ns

 o
f r

us
t/c

or
ro

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 s

iz
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 th
os

e 
th

at
 a

re
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
ad

ve
rt

is
in

g 
si

gn
s.

 
l. 

La
ck

 o
f c

le
ar

ly
 d

is
pl

ay
ed

 o
r 

om
is

si
on

 o
f ‘

N
o 

S
m

ok
in

g’
 s

ig
ns

. 

 

Page 52



 

P
ag

e 
28

 
 

6.
1 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 B
O

D
Y

, S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
 –

 (
IN

TE
R

IO
R

) 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
  B

o
d

y 
C

o
n

d
it

io
n 

(I
n

te
ri

o
r)

 
 

a.
 

E
xa

m
in

e 
th

or
ou

gh
ly

 t
he

 in
te

rio
r 

fo
r 

da
m

ag
ed

, 
in

se
cu

re
 o

r 
lo

os
e 

fix
tu

re
s,

 fi
tti

ng
s 

or
 a

cc
es

so
rie

s.
 

b.
 

D
irt

y,
 m

is
si

ng
 a

nd
 w

or
n 

tr
im

, 
ca

rp
et

s,
 s

ea
t 

be
lts

, 
m

at
s,

 
he

ad
lin

in
g,

 b
oo

t 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 i

nc
lu

si
on

 o
f 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 i

te
m

s.
 

R
em

ov
e 

m
at

s 
to

 
in

sp
ec

t 
ca

rp
et

s 
un

de
rn

ea
th

 
fo

r 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
an

d 
w

ea
r.

  
c.

 
E

xa
m

in
e 

in
te

rio
r 

lig
ht

s,
 m

ot
io

n 
do

or
 l

oc
ks

 a
nd

 w
ar

ni
ng

 
lig

ht
s.

 
  d.
 

E
xa

m
in

e 
he

at
in

g,
 d

em
is

tin
g 

an
d 

ai
r 

co
nd

iti
on

 s
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r 
co

rr
ec

t 
op

er
at

io
n,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
co

m
pa

rt
m

en
t 

co
nt

ro
ls

 w
he

re
 fi

tte
d(

in
cl

ud
es

 e
le

ct
ric

 fr
on

t a
nd

 r
ea

r 
sc

re
en

 
de

m
is

te
rs

) 
e.

 
E

xa
m

in
e 

al
l 

w
in

do
w

s 
en

su
rin

g 
th

ey
 a

llo
w

 l
ow

er
in

g 
an

d 
ris

in
g 

ea
si

ly
. 

f. 
E

xa
m

in
e 

in
te

rio
r 

do
or

 
lo

ck
s,

 
gr

ab
 

ha
nd

le
s/

ra
ils

 
sa

fe
ty

 
co

ve
rs

 
  g.

 
E

xa
m

in
e 

gr
ill

s/
pa

rt
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

se
cu

rit
y 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

 
 h.

 
E

xa
m

in
e 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 w

iri
ng

 f
or

 c
on

di
tio

n,
 s

ec
ur

ity
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

te
rc

om
 s

ys
te

m
s.

 
    

 R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

R
ej

ec
ti

o
n 

   
a.

 
In

se
cu

re
 a

nd
 lo

os
e 

fix
tu

re
s,

 fi
tti

ng
s 

or
 a

cc
es

so
rie

s.
  

 
b.

 
M

is
si

ng
, 

di
rt

y,
 

so
ile

d,
 

st
ai

ne
d 

w
or

n 
or

 
in

se
cu

re
 

tr
im

, 
ca

rp
et

s,
 h

ea
dl

in
in

g,
 a

nd
 m

at
s.

  
  

c.
 

A
n 

in
op

er
at

iv
e 

in
te

rio
r 

lig
ht

 (
al

l 
lig

ht
s 

m
us

t 
ill

um
in

at
e 

if 
th

ey
 a

re
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r’s
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t)
. 

M
is

si
ng

 o
r 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

ot
io

n 
sw

itc
h/

lo
ck

 o
r 

w
ar

ni
ng

 la
m

p 
no

t i
llu

m
in

at
ed

 
d.

 
A

 s
ys

te
m

(s
),

 w
hi

ch
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

fu
nc

tio
n 

co
rr

ec
tly

, 
or

 a
ny

 
pa

rt
 is

 m
is

si
ng

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ve

nt
s,

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
an

d 
sw

itc
he

s.
 

  
e.

 
A

n 
op

en
in

g 
w

in
do

w
 th

at
 is

 in
op

er
at

iv
e 

or
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
op

en
 

an
d 

or
 c

lo
se

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 b

ro
ke

n/
m

is
si

ng
. 

f. 
M

is
si

ng
, 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
or

 
lo

os
e 

do
or

 
lo

ck
s,

 
ch

ild
 

lo
ck

s,
 

pr
ot

ec
tiv

e 
co

ve
rs

 
gr

ab
 

ha
nd

le
s 

an
d 

ra
ils

. 
G

ra
b 

ha
nd

le
s/

ra
ils

, w
hi

ch
 a

re
 r

ig
id

 to
 a

id
 th

e 
bl

in
d 

an
d 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 
si

gh
te

d,
 a

nd
 a

re
 w

or
n 

to
 e

xc
es

s.
 

g.
 

A
 

gr
ill

/p
ar

tit
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 
is

 
in

se
cu

re
 

or
 

ha
s 

sh
ar

p 
ed

ge
 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 c

au
se

 in
ju

ry
 to

 p
as

se
ng

er
s 

or
 d

riv
er

. 
h.

 
F

ra
ye

d,
 

ch
af

fin
g 

w
iri

ng
, 

no
n-

sh
ie

ld
ed

 
te

rm
in

al
s 

an
d 

ca
bl

es
 s

o 
ro

ut
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

ey
 c

au
se

 a
 t

rip
 h

az
ar

d,
 c

ab
le

s 
th

at
 

ca
n 

be
 

ea
si

ly
 

di
sc

on
ne

ct
ed

. 
In

te
rc

om
 

sy
st

em
 

de
fe

ct
iv

e,
 

w
ar

ni
ng

 
lig

ht
 

in
op

er
at

iv
e 

an
d 

si
gn

s 
ill

eg
ib

le
/m

is
si

ng
. 

 

Page 53



 

P
ag

e 
29

 
 

M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 B
o

d
y 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 (

In
te

ri
or

) 
(c

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

) 
i. 

E
xa

m
in

e 
th

e 
bo

ot
 f

or
 a

cc
es

s,
 c

on
te

nt
s,

 c
le

an
lin

es
s,

 a
nd

 
w

at
er

 in
gr

es
s.

 
  A

dd
iti

on
al

 
ite

m
s 

to
 

be
 

in
sp

ec
te

d 
in

 
lim

ou
si

ne
s 

an
d 

no
ve

lty
 

ve
hi

cl
es

: 
 

j. 
A

ll 
fix

tu
re

s 
an

d 
fit

tin
gs

 i
.e

. 
m

irr
or

 b
al

ls
, 

dr
in

ks
 c

ab
in

et
s,

 
te

le
vi

si
on

s 
et

c 
m

us
t 

be
 s

to
re

d 
se

cu
re

ly
 a

nd
 n

ot
 h

in
de

r 
th

e 
in

gr
es

s 
or

 e
gr

es
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
co

m
pa

rt
m

en
t. 

k.
 

A
 n

ot
ic

e 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 s
ea

tin
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 t
o 

be
 

di
sp

la
ye

d 
in

 
th

e 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

co
m

pa
rt

m
en

t 
an

d 
cl

ea
rly

 
vi

si
bl

e 
to

 a
ll 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
. 

It 
m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 d

is
pl

ay
 

m
or

e 
th

an
 

on
e 

si
gn

 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 
se

at
in

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
. 

 
N

o
te

: 
A

n
y 

ve
h

ic
le

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 in
 a

 d
ir

ty
, u

n
ti

d
y 

co
n

d
it

io
n

 w
ill

 
n

o
t 

b
e 

te
st

ed
 

  

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

  
i. 

U
na

bl
e 

to
 o

pe
n,

 c
lo

se
 a

nd
 o

r 
lo

ck
 b

oo
t l

id
, f

ai
lu

re
 o

f b
oo

t 
lid

 
su

pp
or

t 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

, 
de

fe
ct

iv
e 

se
al

s/
ev

id
en

ce
 

of
 

w
at

er
 i

ng
re

ss
, 

di
rt

y 
bo

ot
 a

nd
 o

r 
ca

rp
et

s,
 l

oo
se

 i
te

m
s 

st
or

ed
 in

 b
oo

t (
i.e

. s
pa

re
 w

he
el

 to
ol

s 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t e

tc
).

 
   

j. 
A

ny
 f

ix
tu

re
 o

r 
fit

tin
g,

 t
ha

t 
is

 l
oo

se
 o

r 
in

se
cu

re
 o

r 
w

he
re

 
w

al
kw

ay
s 

ar
e 

bl
oc

ke
d 

th
at

 p
re

ve
nt

s 
ea

se
 o

f 
in

gr
es

s 
or

 
eg

re
ss

 fr
om

 th
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
co

m
pa

rt
m

en
t. 

k.
 

N
o 

m
ax

im
um

 s
ea

tin
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 s
ig

n 
or

 s
ig

ns
 d

is
pl

ay
ed

. 
A

 s
ig

n 
or

 s
ig

ns
 n

ot
 c

le
ar

ly
 v

is
ib

le
 to

 a
ll 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 

 

  

Page 54



 

P
ag

e 
30

 
 

6.
2 

   
D

O
O

R
S

 a
n

d 
S

E
A

TS
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 D
o

o
rs

 a
n

d
 E

m
er

g
en

cy
 E

xi
ts

 
 E

xa
m

in
e 

th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f 

al
l d

oo
rs

 a
nd

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ex
its

. 
C

he
ck

 
do

or
 lo

ck
s,

 s
tr

ik
er

 p
la

te
s,

 h
an

dl
es

 a
nd

 h
in

ge
s 

fo
r 

se
cu

rit
y,

 w
ea

r 
an

d 
m

is
si

ng
 a

nd
 d

am
ag

ed
 tr

im
/c

ov
er

 p
la

te
s.

 
    

 
  C

he
ck

 
m

ar
ki

ng
s 

de
sc

rib
in

g 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 

an
d 

m
et

ho
d 

of
   

   
op

en
in

g 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ex
it(

s)
 a

re
 r

ea
di

ly
 v

is
ib

le
 o

n 
or

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 
th

e 
ex

it 
an

d 
ar

e 
le

gi
bl

e.
 

  C
he

ck
 th

at
 s

ea
ts

 a
re

 s
ec

ur
e,

 c
le

an
 a

nd
 n

ot
 u

nd
ul

y 
w

or
n.

  
 IM

P
O

R
T

A
N

T 
N

O
T

E
: 

W
it

h
 t

h
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n
 o

f 
‘n

ov
el

ty
 v

eh
ic

le
s’

 
o

n
ly

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
w

it
h

 f
o

rw
ar

d
 a

n
d

 r
ea

r 
fa

ci
n

g
 s

ea
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
ce

p
te

d
. 

 F
o

r 
m

o
re

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

n
 s

ea
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
n

o
ve

lt
y 

ve
h

ic
le

s 
se

e 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
2.

2 
  

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 D
o

o
rs

 a
n

d
 E

m
er

g
en

cy
 E

xi
ts

 
 a.

 
A

 d
oo

r 
or

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ex
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 l
at

ch
 s

ec
ur

el
y 

in
 t

he
 

cl
os

ed
 p

os
iti

on
. 

b.
 

A
 d

oo
r 

or
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ex

it 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

op
en

ed
 f

ro
m

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
in

si
de

 a
nd

 o
ut

si
de

 t
he

 v
eh

ic
le

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 r

el
ev

an
t 

co
nt

ro
l 

in
 

ea
ch

 c
as

e.
 

c.
 

M
is

si
ng

, l
oo

se
 o

r 
w

or
n 

ha
nd

le
s,

 lo
ck

 o
r 

st
rik

er
 p

la
te

. 
 d.

 
M

ar
ki

ng
s 

de
sc

rib
in

g 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 a

nd
 m

et
ho

d 
of

 o
pe

ni
ng

 
an

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ex
it 

m
is

si
ng

, i
lle

gi
bl

e 
or

 in
co

rr
ec

t. 
 e.

 
M

is
si

ng
, l

oo
se

 o
r 

da
m

ag
ed

 tr
im

/c
ov

er
 p

la
te

. 
 f. 

S
ea

t 
cu

sh
io

n(
s)

 s
ta

in
ed

, 
to

rn
, 

ho
le

d,
 w

or
n 

or
 i

ns
ec

ur
e.

 A
 

se
at

 t
ha

t 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

de
qu

at
e 

su
pp

or
t 

at
 b

as
e 

or
 

ba
ck

re
st

. 
T

or
n,

 
sl

as
he

d 
or

 
ba

dl
y 

st
ai

ne
d 

se
at

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

.  
 

 

     

Page 55



 

P
ag

e 
31

 
 

 6.
2 

   
D

O
O

R
S

 a
n

d 
S

E
A

TS
 (

co
nt

in
ue

d)
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
: 

W
h

ee
lc

ha
ir

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
 D

oo
r 

C
on

fig
ur

at
io

ns
 fo

r w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 v

eh
ic

le
s:

 
a.

 
S

in
gl

e 
re

ar
 d

oo
r 

– 
m

us
t 

op
en

 t
o 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 
90

 d
eg

re
es

 a
nd

 b
e 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 lo

ck
in

g 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

 b.
 

T
w

in
 r

ea
r 

do
or

s 
– 

bo
th

 m
us

t 
op

en
 t

o 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 

18
0 

de
gr

ee
s 

an
d 

be
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f 
be

in
g 

lo
ck

ed
 i

n 
pl

ac
e.

 T
hi

s 
is

 t
o 

en
ab

le
 a

n 
at

te
nd

an
t 

(d
riv

er
 o

r 
gu

id
e)

 t
o 

as
si

st
 t

he
 w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

if 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

   

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

    a.
 

D
oo

r 
do

es
 n

ot
 o

pe
n 

to
 a

 f
ul

l 9
0 

de
gr

ee
s 

an
d 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
se

cu
re

d 
in

 th
e 

op
en

 p
os

iti
on

 
 b.

 
T

w
in

 d
oo

rs
 d

o 
no

t 
op

en
 t

o 
a 

fu
ll 

18
0 

de
gr

ee
s 

an
d 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
se

cu
re

d 
in

 th
e 

op
en

 p
os

iti
on

 
       

             

Page 56



 

P
ag

e 
32

 
 

6.
4 

B
U

M
P

E
R

 B
A

R
S

 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
    

E
xa

m
in

e 
th

e 
bu

m
pe

r 
ba

rs
 a

nd
 c

he
ck

: 
a.

 
T

he
y 

ar
e 

se
cu

re
 to

 th
ei

r 
m

ou
nt

in
gs

. 
  b.

 
T

he
 m

ou
nt

in
gs

 a
re

 s
ec

ur
e 

to
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e.
 

    c.
 

T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f d

am
ag

e.
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

   a.
 

A
 lo

os
e 

bu
m

pe
r 

ba
r 

or
 m

ou
nt

in
g.

 A
 w

ea
ke

ne
d 

bu
m

pe
r 

ba
r 

an
d/

or
 m

ou
nt

in
g 

is
 in

se
cu

re
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f p
oo

r 
re

pa
irs

. 
b.

 
A

 fr
ac

tu
re

d 
m

ou
nt

in
g 

br
ac

ke
t. 

M
ou

nt
in

g 
bo

lts
 s

o 
w

or
n 

or
 

el
on

ga
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
bu

m
pe

r 
ba

r 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 d
et

ac
h 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 o
r 

co
m

pl
et

el
y 

fr
om

 th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

w
he

n 
in

 u
se

. A
 b

um
pe

r 
ba

r 
se

cu
re

d 
by

 w
ire

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 m
ea

ns
 is

 r
eg

ar
de

d 
as

 
in

se
cu

re
 a

nd
 m

us
t b

e 
re

je
ct

ed
.  

c.
 

B
um

pe
r 

ba
rs

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

ja
gg

ed
 e

dg
es

, 
cr

ac
ks

, 
sp

lit
s 

or
 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
, 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 c

au
se

 i
nj

ur
y 

to
 p

er
so

ns
 n

ea
r 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 P
ai

nt
 m

is
s 

m
at

ch
 o

r 
fa

di
ng

 w
hi

ch
 i

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 

di
ffe

re
nt

 to
 th

at
 o

f t
he

 r
es

t o
f t

he
 p

ai
nt

w
or

k.
 

                 

Page 57



 

P
ag

e 
33

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 7
 –

 F
U

E
L

 &
 E

M
IS

S
IO

N
S

 
  S

ec
ti

o
n

 C
o

nt
en

ts
: 

  S
u

b
-s

ec
ti

o
n 

 
S

u
b

je
ct

 
  7.

1 
 

 
 

 
E

xh
au

st
 S

ys
te

m
 

 7.
2 

 
 

 
F

ue
l S

ys
te

m
 –

 P
ip

es
 &

 T
an

ks
 

                     

Page 58



 

P
ag

e 
34

 
 

7.
1 

   
E

X
H

A
U

S
T 

S
Y

S
TE

M
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 W
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

, c
he

ck
 fo

r 
pr

es
en

ce
, s

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 

gr
ea

se
 s

hi
el

ds
 to

 h
ot

 e
xh

au
st

s.
 

         

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 A
 h

ea
t s

hi
el

d 
m

is
si

ng
, i

ns
ec

ur
e 

or
 in

ad
eq

ua
te

   
         

                  

Page 59



 

P
ag

e 
35

 
 

7.
2 

F
U

E
L

 S
Y

S
TE

M
 -

 P
IP

E
S

 &
 T

A
N

K
S

  
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 a.

 
E

xa
m

in
e 

fu
el

 ta
nk

(s
) f

or
 s

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 le

ak
s 

 b.
 

C
he

ck
 th

at
 fu

el
 ta

nk
 fi

lle
r 

ca
ps

 a
re

: 
o
 

P
re

se
nt

 
o
 

O
f t

he
 c

or
re

ct
 ty

pe
 

o
 

S
ec

ur
e 

an
d 

se
at

ed
 p

ro
pe

rly
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
rr

ec
t f

un
ct

io
n 

of
 

se
al

in
g 

 
c.

 
E

xa
m

in
e 

pi
pe

s 
to

 s
ee

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
se

cu
re

ly
 c

lip
pe

d 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 
da

m
ag

e 
by

 c
ha

fin
g 

an
d 

cr
ac

ki
ng

, 
an

d 
ar

e 
no

t 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 w

ill
 b

e 
fo

ul
ed

 b
y 

m
ov

in
g 

pa
rt

s 
 d.

 
C

he
ck

 t
ha

t 
no

 f
ue

l 
pi

pe
 r

un
s 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 o
r 

in
 

di
re

ct
 c

on
ta

ct
 w

ith
 e

le
ct

ric
al

 w
iri

ng
 o

r 
th

e 
ex

ha
us

t s
ys

te
m

 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a.
 

F
ue

l t
an

k 
in

se
cu

re
 o

r 
le

ak
in

g 
 b.

 
A

 f
ill

er
 c

ap
 m

is
si

ng
 o

r 
un

su
ita

bl
e 

or
 in

 s
uc

h 
co

nd
iti

on
 t

ha
t 

it 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 p
re

ve
nt

 fu
el

 le
ak

in
g 

or
 s

pi
lli

ng
 

  N
o

te
: T

em
po

ra
ry

/e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

fu
el

 c
ap

s 
ar

e 
no

t p
er

m
itt

ed
. 

 c.
 

D
am

ag
ed

, 
ch

af
ed

, 
in

se
cu

re
 p

ip
es

, 
or

 p
ip

es
 s

o 
po

si
tio

ne
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 d

an
ge

r 
of

 th
em

 fo
ul

in
g 

m
ov

in
g 

pa
rts

 
  d.

 
A

 f
ue

l p
ip

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 t

o 
or

 in
 d

ire
ct

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 e
le

ct
ric

al
 

w
iri

ng
 o

r 
ex

ha
us

t s
ys

te
m

 
  

              

Page 60



 

P
ag

e 
36

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 8
 –

 D
R

IV
E

R
S

 V
IE

W
 O

F
 T

H
E

 R
O

A
D

 
  S

ec
ti

o
n

 C
o

nt
en

ts
: 

 S
u

b
-s

ec
ti

o
n 

 
S

u
b

je
ct

 
   8.

1 
 

 
 

 
M

irr
or

s 
 8.

3 
 

 
 

W
in

ds
cr

ee
n 

– 
V

ie
w

 to
 th

e 
F

ro
nt

 
 8.

5 
 

 
 

W
in

do
w

 G
la

ss
 o

r 
O

th
er

 T
ra

ns
pa

re
nt

 M
at

er
ia

l 
                   

Page 61



 

P
ag

e 
37

 
 

8.
1 

M
IR

R
O

R
S

 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 T

he
 

nu
m

be
r 

an
d 

po
si

tio
n 

of
 

al
l 

ob
lig

at
or

y 
m

irr
or

s 
m

us
t 

be
 

ch
ec

ke
d:

 
 a.

 
C

he
ck

 t
he

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 e
ac

h 
m

irr
or

 r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

su
rf

ac
e 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 a
 p

er
so

n 
si

tti
ng

 i
n 

th
e 

dr
iv

er
s 

se
at

 c
an

 s
ee

 c
le

ar
ly

 
to

 th
e 

re
ar

 
          

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 N
o

te
: 

A
 d

ef
ec

ti
ve

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 e

xt
er

n
al

 m
ir

ro
r 

is
 n

o
t 

a 
re

as
o

n 
fo

r 
re

je
ct

io
n.

 
 a.

 
M

irr
or

 c
on

di
tio

n 
• 

A
 m

irr
or

 r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

su
rf

ac
e 

de
te

rio
ra

te
d 

or
 b

ro
ke

n.
  

• 
In

 s
uc

h 
a 

po
si

tio
n 

th
at

 a
 p

er
so

n 
si

tti
ng

 in
 th

e 
dr

iv
er

’s
 s

ea
t 

ca
nn

ot
 s

ee
 c

le
ar

ly
 to

 th
e 

re
ar

. 
    

              

Page 62



 

P
ag

e 
38

 
 

8.
3 

W
IN

D
S

C
R

E
E

N
 -

 V
IE

W
 T

O
 T

H
E

 F
R

O
N

T 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 S

it 
in

 t
he

 d
riv

er
’s

 s
ea

t 
an

d 
ch

ec
k 

th
at

 t
he

re
 is

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

vi
ew

 
of

 t
he

 r
oa

d 
ah

ea
d,

 b
ea

rin
g 

in
 m

in
d 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 d
es

ig
n 

of
 t

he
 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 
 a.

 
F

or
 a

ll 
ai

r 
op

er
at

ed
 w

ip
er

s 
ex

am
in

e:
 

o
 

T
he

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 v
is

ib
le

 p
ip

in
g 

o
 

T
he

 fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
, a

nd
 

o
 

T
he

 f
un

ct
io

n 
of

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 v

al
ve

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 t
he

 b
ra

ki
ng

 
sy

st
em

 
 N

o
te

: 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
or

 o
bj

ec
ts

 n
ot

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 f

itt
ed

 to
 t

he
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

s 
pa

rt
 

of
 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 
de

si
gn

 
m

us
t 

no
t 

ob
st

ru
ct

 
th

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 

fo
rw

ar
d 

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

dr
iv

er
. I

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

, o
bj

ec
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 (
bu

t n
ot

 
lim

ite
d 

to
) 

pe
nn

an
ts

, 
ca

b 
de

co
ra

tio
ns

 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 

st
on

e 
gu

ar
ds

/v
is

or
s 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 i

nt
er

ru
pt

 t
he

 v
ie

w
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 s

w
ep

t 
ar

ea
 b

y 
th

e 
w

in
ds

cr
ee

n 
w

ip
er

s.
 

      

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 T
he

 p
os

iti
on

 o
r 

si
ze

 o
f 

an
y 

ob
je

ct
 r

es
tr

ic
ts

 t
he

 d
riv

er
’s

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
ro

ad
 a

he
ad

, 
be

ar
in

g 
in

 m
in

d 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 d

es
ig

n 
of

 t
he

 
ve

hi
cl

e.
 

 a.
 

A
ir 

op
er

at
ed

 w
ip

er
s 

o
 

P
ip

es
 in

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 c

lip
pe

d 
or

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 

o
 

In
co

rr
ec

t f
un

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

w
ip

er
s 

or
 le

ak
in

g 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
o
 

In
co

rr
ec

t o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

va
lv

es
 

 
 

     

Page 63



 

P
ag

e 
39

 
 

 8
.5

   
W

IN
D

O
W

 G
L

A
S

S
 O

R
 O

TH
E

R
 T

R
A

N
S

P
A

R
E

N
T 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a 
V

is
ua

lly
 c

he
ck

 t
he

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

w
in

ds
cr

ee
ns

, 
in

te
rn

al
 

sc
re

en
s,

 p
ar

tit
io

ns
, 

si
de

, 
re

ar
, 

ro
of

 a
nd

 d
oo

r 
w

in
do

w
s 

fo
r 

cr
ac

ks
, s

ur
fa

ce
 d

am
ag

e 
an

d 
di

sc
ol

ou
ra

tio
n.

 
  b 

C
he

ck
 p

re
se

nc
e 

an
d 

se
cu

rit
y 

of
 a

ll 
w

in
ds

cr
ee

ns
, s

id
e,

 r
oo

f, 
or

 r
ea

r 
w

in
do

w
s,

 o
r 

in
te

rn
al

 s
cr

ee
ns

 o
r 

pa
rt

iti
on

s.
 

c 
C

he
ck

 f
or

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 o
bv

io
us

 l
ea

ks
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

w
in

ds
cr

ee
ns

 
an

d 
si

de
, r

ea
r,

 r
oo

f o
r 

do
or

 w
in

do
w

s.
 

d 
C

he
ck

 fo
r 

pr
es

en
ce

, s
ec

ur
ity

 a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 g
ua

rd
 r

ai
ls

 o
r 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 a
t w

in
do

w
s,

 in
te

rn
al

 s
cr

ee
ns

 o
r 

pa
rt

iti
on

s 
e 

F
or

 a
ll 

ve
hi

cl
es

 f
irs

t 
us

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

19
59

. 
A

s 
fa

r 
as

 
is

 p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

, 
ch

ec
k 

th
at

 g
la

ss
 f

itt
ed

 t
o 

w
in

ds
cr

ee
ns

 a
nd

 
ou

ts
id

e 
w

in
do

w
s 

fa
ci

ng
 t

o 
th

e 
fr

on
t 

is
 s

af
et

y 
gl

as
s,

 e
xc

ep
t 

gl
as

s 
fit

te
d 

to
 th

e 
up

pe
r d

ec
k 

of
 a

 d
ou

bl
e 

de
ck

 b
us

. 
f 

F
or

 a
ll 

ve
hi

cl
es

 u
se

d 
on

 o
r 

af
te

r 
1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

19
59

, 
as

 f
ar

 a
s 

is
 p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
, 

ch
ec

k 
th

at
 g

la
ss

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
w

in
ds

cr
ee

ns
 a

nd
 

al
l o

ut
si

de
 w

in
do

w
s 

is
 s

af
et

y 
gl

as
s,

 o
r 

sa
fe

ty
 g

la
zi

ng
. 

g 
V

eh
ic

le
s 

fir
st

 u
se

d 
on

 o
r 

af
te

r 
1 

Ju
ne

 1
97

8,
 c

he
ck

 t
ha

t 
w

in
ds

cr
ee

ns
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 w
in

do
w

s,
 w

ho
lly

 o
r 

pa
rt

ly
, 

on
 e

ith
er

 
si

de
 

of
 

th
e 

dr
iv

er
s’

 
se

at
 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
fr

om
 

sa
fe

ty
 

gl
as

s 
di

sp
la

yi
ng

 a
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 s

af
et

y 
m

ar
k.

 
  N

o
te

: 
M

ar
ki

ng
 is

 n
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
fo

r 
sa

fe
ty

 g
la

ss
 u

se
d 

on
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

fir
st

 u
se

d 
be

fo
re

 1
 J

un
e 

19
78

. 
   

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a 
A

 c
ra

ck
, s

ur
fa

ce
 d

am
ag

e 
or

 d
is

co
lo

ra
tio

n 
in

 g
la

ss
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
t m

at
er

ia
l t

ha
t: 

o
 

Im
pa

irs
 t

he
 d

riv
er

’s
 f

ro
nt

, 
si

de
, 

or
 r

ea
r 

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

ro
ad

, 
or

; 
o
 

P
re

se
nt

s 
a 

da
ng

er
 to

 a
ny

 p
er

so
n 

in
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e.
 

 
b 

A
 w

in
ds

cr
ee

n 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 o

ut
si

de
 w

in
do

w
 m

is
si

ng
, 

or
 a

ny
 

w
in

ds
cr

ee
n,

 w
in

do
w

, i
nt

er
na

l s
cr

ee
n 

or
 p

ar
tit

io
n 

in
se

cu
re

. 
c 

A
ny

 e
xt

er
na

l w
in

do
w

 o
r 

w
in

ds
cr

ee
n 

is
 o

bv
io

us
ly

 le
ak

in
g.

 
 

d 
A

 
gu

ar
d-

ra
il 

or
 

ba
rr

ie
r 

at
 

a 
w

in
do

w
, 

in
te

rn
al

 
sc

re
en

 
or

 
pa

rt
iti

on
 m

is
si

ng
, i

ns
ec

ur
e 

or
 d

am
ag

ed
. 

e 
T

he
 w

in
ds

cr
ee

n 
an

d/
or

 a
ny

 o
ut

si
de

 w
in

do
w

 f
ac

in
g 

to
 t

he
 

fr
on

t 
of

 a
 v

eh
ic

le
 o

bv
io

us
ly

 n
ot

 s
af

et
y 

gl
as

s 
fit

te
d 

to
 a

 
ve

hi
cl

e 
fir

st
 u

se
d 

be
fo

re
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
95

9.
 

 f 
G

la
ss

 
us

ed
 

fo
r 

a 
w

in
ds

cr
ee

n 
or

 
an

 
ou

ts
id

e 
w

in
do

w
 

is
 

ob
vi

ou
sl

y 
no

t s
af

et
y 

gl
as

s.
 

 g 
F

or
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
fir

st
 

us
ed

 
on

 
or

 
af

te
r 

1 
Ju

ne
 

19
78

, 
th

at
 

w
in

ds
cr

ee
ns

 
an

d/
or

 
ot

he
r 

w
in

do
w

s 
w

ho
lly

 
or

 
pa

rt
ly

 
on

 
ei

th
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

dr
iv

er
s 

se
at

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
ad

e 
fr

om
 s

af
et

y 
gl

as
s 

di
sp

la
y 

an
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
sa

fe
ty

 m
ar

k.
 

 
 

Page 64



 

P
ag

e 
40

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 9
 –

 T
ri

cy
cl

es
 &

 Q
u

ad
ri

cy
cl

es
 

   S
ec

ti
o

n
 C

o
nt

en
ts

: 
 S

u
b

-s
ec

ti
o

n 
 

S
u

b
je

ct
 

  N
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
                       

Page 65



 

P
ag

e 
41

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
0 

– 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

  
  S

ec
ti

o
n

 C
o

nt
en

ts
: 

 S
u

b
-s

ec
ti

o
n 

 
S

u
b

je
ct

 
   10

.1
  

 
 

 
S

pe
ed

om
et

er
 

 10
.2

 
 

 
 

T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 

 10
.3

 
 

 
 

E
ng

in
e 

&
 T

ra
ns

m
is

si
on

 M
ou

nt
in

gs
 

 10
.4

 
 

 
 

O
il 

&
 W

at
er

 L
ea

ks
 

 10
.5

 
 

 
 

Lu
gg

ag
e/

Lo
ad

 S
pa

ce
 

 10
.6

  
T

ra
ile

rs
 &

 T
ow

ba
rs

 
 

 
 

 

Page 66



 

P
ag

e 
42

 
 

10
.1

   
 S

P
E

E
D

O
M

E
TE

R
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

  a.
 

C
he

ck
 th

at
 a

 s
pe

ed
om

et
er

 is
 fi

tte
d.

 

b.
 

C
he

ck
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 s
pe

ed
om

et
er

. 

c.
 

C
he

ck
 th

at
 th

e 
sp

ee
do

m
et

er
 c

an
 b

e 
ill

um
in

at
ed

. 
     

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

  a.
 

S
pe

ed
om

et
er

 n
ot

 fi
tte

d.
 

b.
 

S
pe

ed
om

et
er

 n
ot

 c
om

pl
et

e 
or

 c
le

ar
ly

 i
no

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 o
r 

di
al

   
gl

as
s 

br
ok

en
 o

r 
m

is
si

ng
. 

c.
 

T
he

 s
pe

ed
om

et
er

 c
an

no
t b

e 
ill

um
in

at
ed

. 

                 

Page 67



 

P
ag

e 
43

 
 

10
.2

   
TR

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 E

xa
m

in
e 

tr
an

sm
is

si
on

, c
he

ck
 fo

r:
 

 a.
 

M
is

si
ng

 o
r 

lo
os

e 
fla

ng
e 

bo
lts

 

b.
 

C
ra

ck
ed

 o
r 

in
se

cu
re

 fl
an

ge
s 

c.
 

W
ea

r 
in

 s
ha

ft 
an

d/
or

 w
he

el
 b

ea
rin

gs
 

d.
 

S
ec

ur
ity

 o
f b

ea
rin

g 
ho

us
in

gs
 

e.
 

C
ra

ck
s 

or
 fr

ac
tu

re
s 

in
 b

ea
rin

g 
ho

us
in

gs
 

f. 
W

ea
r 

in
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 jo
in

ts
 

g.
 

D
et

er
io

ra
tio

n 
of

 fl
ex

ib
le

 c
ou

pl
in

gs
 

h.
 

D
is

to
rt

ed
, d

am
ag

ed
 s

ha
fts

 

i. 
D

et
er

io
ra

tio
n 

of
 b

ea
rin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
fle

xi
bl

e 
m

ou
nt

in
gs

 

j. 
C

le
ar

an
ce

 
be

tw
ee

n 
tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 

sh
af

ts
 

an
d 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
       

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

   a.
 

A
 lo

os
e 

or
 m

is
si

ng
 fl

an
ge

 b
ol

t(
s)

 

b.
 

A
 fl

an
ge

 c
ra

ck
ed

, o
r 

lo
os

e 
on

 th
e 

tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 s
ha

ft 

c.
 

E
xc

es
si

ve
 w

ea
r 

in
 s

ha
ft 

be
ar

in
g 

d.
 

A
 b

ea
rin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
in

se
cu

re
 to

 it
s 

fix
in

g 

e.
 

A
 c

ra
ck

ed
 o

r f
ra

ct
ur

ed
 b

ea
rin

g 
ho

us
in

g 

f. 
E

xc
es

si
ve

 w
ea

r 
in

 a
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 jo
in

t 

g.
 

D
et

er
io

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 s

ha
ft 

fle
xi

bl
e 

co
up

lin
g 

 h.
 

A
 d

am
ag

ed
, c

ra
ck

ed
 o

r b
en

t s
ha

ft 

i. 
D

et
er

io
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 fl
ex

ib
le

 m
ou

nt
in

g 
of

 a
 b

ea
rin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
 j. 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 f
ou

lin
g 

be
tw

ee
n 

an
y 

tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 s
ha

ft 
an

d 
an

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 c

om
po

ne
nt

 

Page 68



 

P
ag

e 
44

 
 

10
.2

   
TR

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 (
co

nt
’d

) 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 F

ro
nt

 W
he

el
 D

riv
e 

 
   

   
a.

 
C

he
ck

 t
he

 d
riv

e 
sh

af
t 

in
ne

r 
an

d 
ou

te
r 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
jo

in
t 

co
up

lin
gs

 a
nd

 c
on

st
an

t v
el

oc
ity

 jo
in

ts
 fo

r:
 

 
o
 

W
ea

r 
an

d 
se

cu
rit

y 
 o
 

D
am

ag
e 

to
 

fle
xi

bl
e 

ru
bb

er
 

or
 

fa
br

ic
 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
jo

in
ts

 

o
 

S
ec

ur
ity

 a
nd

 o
il 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n 
of

 f
le

xi
bl

e 
ru

bb
er

 
or

 fa
br

ic
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 jo
in

ts
 

o
 

C
on

di
tio

n,
 

pr
es

en
ce

 
an

d 
se

cu
rit

y 
of

 
co

ns
ta

nt
 

ve
lo

ci
ty

 jo
in

t g
ai

te
rs

 
  

 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

    
  

o
 

D
riv

e 
sh

af
t 

co
ns

ta
nt

 v
el

oc
ity

 o
r 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
jo

in
t 

co
up

lin
g 

w
or

n 
or

 in
se

cu
re

 
o
 

A
 

fle
xi

bl
e 

ru
bb

er
 

or
 

fa
br

ic
 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
co

up
lin

g 
un

it 
da

m
ag

ed
 b

y 
se

ve
re

 c
ra

ck
in

g 
or

 b
re

ak
in

g 
up

 
 o
 

A
 

fle
xi

bl
e 

ru
bb

er
 

or
 

fa
br

ic
 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
co

up
lin

g 
un

it 
ex

ce
ss

iv
el

y 
so

fte
ne

d 
by

 o
il 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n 
or

 in
se

cu
re

 
 o
 

A
 d

riv
e 

sh
af

t c
on

st
an

t v
el

oc
ity

 jo
in

t g
ai

te
r 

sp
lit

, m
is

si
ng

 o
r 

in
se

cu
re

ly
 m

ou
nt

ed
 

 
      

        

Page 69



 

P
ag

e 
45

 
 

10
.3

 E
N

G
IN

E
 A

N
D

 T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 M
O

U
N

TI
N

G
S

 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 a.

 
E

xa
m

in
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f: 

o
 

m
ou

nt
in

gs
 

o
 

su
b-

fr
am

es
 

 
 

A
nd

 
 

b.
 

T
he

 s
ec

ur
ity

 to
 c

ha
ss

is
 a

nd
 c

he
ck

 fo
r:

 
o
 

fr
ac

tu
re

s 
o
 

lo
os

en
es

s 
o
 

D
et

er
io

ra
tio

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 } } } } } } 
   

   
   

   
  A

ny
 m

ou
nt

in
g 

or
 s

ub
-f

ra
m

e 
} 

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
lo

os
e 

} 
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

fr
ac

tu
re

d 
} 

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
de

te
rio

ra
te

d 
} 

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 r

ep
ai

r 
}   

 

Page 70



 

P
ag

e 
46

 
 

10
.4

 O
IL

 A
N

D
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
E

A
K

S
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a.
 

C
he

ck
 v

eh
ic

le
 f

or
 o

il 
an

d 
w

at
er

 le
ak

s 
fr

om
 a

ny
 a

ss
em

bl
y 

or
 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 to

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
. 

 b.
 

A
nd

/o
r 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
po

si
te

d 
on

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 b
od

yw
or

k 
or

 o
nt

o 
th

e 
ex

ha
us

t s
ys

te
m

. 
      

 
N

o
te

: 
If 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y,
 t

he
 e

ng
in

e 
ca

n 
be

 r
un

 a
t 

id
le

 s
pe

ed
 t

o 
co

nf
irm

 th
e 

ex
is

te
nc

e 
of

 a
n 

oi
l l

ea
k.

 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a.
 

A
n 

oi
l 

or
 w

at
er

 l
ea

k,
 f

ro
m

 a
ny

 a
ss

em
bl

y,
 w

hi
ch

 d
ep

os
its

 
flu

id
s 

un
de

rn
ea

th
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
w

hi
ls

t s
ta

tio
na

ry
. 

 b.
 

Le
ak

s 
w

hi
ch

, 
w

he
n 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

is
 

m
ov

in
g,

 
co

ul
d 

be
 

de
po

si
te

d 
up

on
 t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 b

od
yw

or
k,

 e
xh

au
st

 a
nd

 
br

ak
e 

sy
st

em
 s

o 
th

at
 it

 w
ou

ld
:  

o
 

C
on

ta
m

in
at

e 
ar

ea
s 

o
 

C
ou

ld
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 c
au

se
 a

 h
ea

lth
, s

af
et

y 
or

 fi
re

 r
is

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                 

Page 71



 

P
ag

e 
47

 
 

10
.5

 L
U

G
G

A
G

E
/L

O
A

D
 S

P
A

C
E

 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 P

hy
si

ca
l s

ep
ar

at
io

n 
is

 n
ot

 s
o 

m
uc

h 
an

 is
su

e 
as

 is
 th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 o
f 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f a

n 
ac

ci
de

nt
.  

T
he

 lu
gg

ag
e 

sh
ou

ld
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 s
ec

ur
e 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
te

d 
fr

om
 b

ec
om

in
g 

di
sl

od
ge

d 
in

 
an

 a
cc

id
en

t i
n 

su
ch

 a
 m

an
ne

r 
as

 m
ay

 c
au

se
 in

ju
ry

.  
S

uc
h 

se
cu

rit
y 

ca
n 

be
 b

y 
m

ea
ns

 o
f a

 s
he

et
 o

r 
ne

t, 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
an

ch
or

ed
 to

 th
e 

flo
or

 o
f t

he
 lu

gg
ag

e 
ar

ea
.  

C
le

ar
ly

 if
 th

e 
lu

gg
ag

e 
co

m
pa

rt
m

en
t i

s 
no

t p
hy

si
ca

lly
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
co

m
pa

rt
m

en
t t

he
n 

ca
re

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
so

 a
s 

no
t t

o 
ca

rr
y 

an
y 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
ite

m
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

fu
el

 c
an

s,
 d

et
er

ge
nt

s 
or

 o
th

er
 

lo
os

e 
ite

m
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 le

ak
 if

 th
ey

 b
ec

om
e 

da
m

ag
ed

. 

 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 
o
 

Lo
ad

 r
es

tr
ai

nt
 s

ys
te

m
, 

if 
re

qu
ire

d,
 n

ot
 p

re
se

nt
 a

t 
tim

e 
of

 
te

st
. 

 
o
 

Lo
ad

 r
es

tr
ai

nt
 s

ys
te

m
 fa

ul
ty

 o
r 

un
se

rv
ic

ea
bl

e.
 

 
 

 
 

 

                  

Page 72



 

P
ag

e 
48

 
 

10
.6

 T
R

A
IL

E
R

S
 &

 T
O

W
B

A
R

S
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 T
R

A
IL

E
R

S
  

a.
 

W
he

re
 a

 lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

pe
rm

its
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 tr
ai

le
rs

 
fo

r 
th

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
 o

f 
lu

gg
ag

e,
 t

he
n 

th
e 

tr
ai

le
r 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
fo

r 
te

st
 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

th
at

 
w

ill
 

be
 

au
th

or
is

ed
 to

 to
w

 it
. T

he
 tr

ai
le

r 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ne
ed

 to
 d

is
pl

ay
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 r
eg

is
tr

at
io

n 
pl

at
e 

an
d 

a 
lic

en
ce

 p
la

te
. 

N
o

te
: 

T
ra

ile
rs

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 fo

r 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 b

y 
an

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
or

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

tr
ai

le
r 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r.
  

 A
n 

ex
am

pl
e 

of
 a

 t
yp

ic
al

 t
ra

ile
r 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
sh

ee
t 

ca
n 

be
 f

ou
nd

 a
t 

A
pp

en
di

x 
‘A

’. 

 T
O

W
-B

A
R

S
 

b.
 

W
he

re
 t

ow
 b

ar
s 

ar
e 

fit
te

d 
ch

ec
ks

 m
us

t 
be

 m
ad

e 
on

 t
he

 
co

nd
iti

on
 a

nd
 s

ec
ur

ity
 to

 th
e 

to
w

in
g 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 
  

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
a.

 
R

ej
ec

tio
ns

 
as

 
in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 

th
e 

tr
ai

le
r 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
sh

ee
t 

sh
ow

n 
at

 A
pp

en
di

x 
‘A

’ 
 

 
 

             b.
 

R
ej

ec
tio

ns
 

as
 

in
di

ca
te

d 
on

 
th

e 
tr

ai
le

r 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
ee

t 
sh

ow
n 

at
 A

pp
en

di
x 

‘A
’ 

 
 

        

Page 73



 

P
ag

e 
49

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
1 

– 
A

N
C

IL
L

A
R

Y
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
  

  S
ec

ti
o

n
 C

o
nt

en
ts

: 
 S

u
b

-s
ec

ti
o

n 
 

S
u

b
je

ct
 

   11
.1

  
W

he
el

ch
ai

r 
R

es
tr

ai
nt

 &
 A

cc
es

s 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
 11

.2
  

F
ire

 E
xt

in
gu

is
he

r 
 11

.3
  

F
irs

t A
id

 K
it 

                   

Page 74



 

P
ag

e 
50

 
 

11
.1

  
W

H
E

E
L

C
H

A
IR

 R
E

S
TR

A
IN

T 
&

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 W
H

E
E

LC
H

A
IR

 R
E

S
T

R
A

IN
T

 
a.

 W
he

re
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

ch
ec

k 
co

nd
iti

on
 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
re

st
ra

in
t. 

 b.
 A

 s
ys

te
m

 f
or

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
an

ch
or

in
g 

of
 w

he
el

ch
ai

rs
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
in

 
al

l 
sp

ac
es

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 
as

 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
sp

ac
es

.  

W
H

E
E

LC
H

A
IR

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 &
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 

A
 v

eh
ic

le
 s

ha
ll 

be
 f

itt
ed

 w
ith

 e
ith

er
 o

f 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

fo
rm

s 
of

 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
ac

ce
ss

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t: 

 R
am

ps
 

c.
 C

he
ck

 t
ha

t 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 r
am

ps
 f

itt
ed

 a
re

 s
ec

ur
el

y 
in

st
al

le
d 

in
 

th
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 s

to
ra

ge
 a

re
a.

 E
xa

m
in

e 
fo

r 
da

m
ag

e,
 d

ef
or

m
ity

, 
sh

ar
p 

ed
ge

s 
et

c.
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

nt
i-s

lip
 c

ov
er

in
g.

 
 W

he
el

ch
ai

r 
lif

t 
d.

 A
 

pu
rp

os
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
lif

t 
sh

al
l 

co
nf

or
m

 
to

 
th

e 
LO

LE
R

 9
8 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

. 
A

 r
ep

or
t, 

co
nf

irm
in

g 
th

at
 t

he
 l

ift
in

g 
eq

ui
pm

en
t i

s 
sa

fe
 to

 u
se

, s
ha

ll 
be

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n.
 V

eh
ic

le
s 

pr
es

en
te

d 
fo

r 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
 

w
he

el
 c

ha
ir 

lif
t w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

 L
O

LE
R

 c
er

tif
ic

at
e 

th
at

 is
 v

al
id

 fo
r 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
da

te
 o

f i
ss

ue
. 

 N
o

te
: 

 
P

as
se

ng
er

 
lif

tin
g 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
w

ill
 

ne
ed

 
to

 
be

 
th

or
ou

gh
ly

 
ex

am
in

ed
 b

y 
a 

co
m

pe
te

nt
 p

er
so

n,
 i

n 
us

e,
 a

t 
le

as
t 

on
ce

 
ev

er
y 

si
x 

m
on

th
s.

 
 

R
ea

so
n

 F
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

  a.
 

A
 w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
re

st
ra

in
t i

s 
de

fe
ct

iv
e,

 w
or

n 
or

 m
is

si
ng

. 
  b.

 
W

he
el

ch
ai

r 
an

ch
or

ag
e 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

de
vi

ce
s 

do
es

 
no

t 
co

nf
or

m
 t

o 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

D
ire

ct
iv

e 
76

/1
15

 E
E

C
 (

as
 a

m
en

de
d 

by
 9

0/
62

9 
E

E
C

).
 S

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

‘B
’. 

     c.
 

R
am

ps
 m

is
si

ng
, i

ns
ec

ur
el

y 
st

or
ed

, d
am

ag
ed

/d
ef

or
m

ed
, a

nt
i-

sl
ip

 c
ov

er
in

g 
in

 p
oo

r 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

r 
m

is
si

ng
.  

   d.
 

V
eh

ic
le

 
no

t 
pr

es
en

te
d 

w
ith

 
a 

va
lid

 
or

 
cu

rr
en

t 
LO

LE
R

 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

. 
     

  

Page 75



 

P
ag

e 
51

 
 

11
.1

 
 W

H
E

E
L

C
H

A
IR

 R
E

S
TR

A
IN

T 
&

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

(C
on

tin
ue

d)
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 e.
 

A
ny

 p
ur

po
se

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
ac

ce
ss

 r
am

p 
th

at
 is

 c
ar

rie
d 

m
us

t 
be

 l
ig

ht
w

ei
gh

t 
an

d 
ea

sy
 t

o 
de

pl
oy

. 
T

he
 i

ns
ta

lle
d 

ra
m

p 
sh

al
l 

ha
ve

 v
is

ib
le

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 t

o 
sa

fe
 w

or
ki

ng
 l

oa
d 

of
 2

50
 k

gs
 

an
d 

ce
rt

ifi
ed

 to
 B

S
 6

10
9.

 
 f. 

W
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
sh

al
l 

be
 f

itt
ed

 e
ith

er
 i

nt
o 

th
e 

re
ar

 o
r 

si
de

 a
cc

es
s 

do
or

 o
f t

he
 v

eh
ic

le
.  

W
he

re
 it

 is
 fi

tte
d 

to
 a

 
si

de
 d

oo
r 

th
is

 s
ha

ll 
be

 t
he

 d
oo

r 
si

tu
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

ar
 s

id
e 

of
 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e,

 i.
e.

 k
er

bs
id

e 
w

he
n 

st
op

pe
d 

in
 a

 n
or

m
al

 r
oa

d.
 

g.
 

T
he

 a
pe

rt
ur

e 
of

 t
he

 d
oo

r 
in

to
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 a
cc

es
s 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
is

 
fit

te
d 

sh
al

l h
av

e 
m

in
im

um
 c

le
ar

 h
ea

dr
oo

m
 in

 it
s 

ce
nt

ra
l t

hi
rd

 
of

 4
8 

in
ch

es
 (

1,
22

0m
m

).
  

T
he

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
sh

al
l 

be
 t

ak
en

 
fr

om
 th

e 
up

pe
r 

ce
nt

re
 o

f t
he

 a
pe

rt
ur

e 
to

 a
 p

oi
nt

 d
ire

ct
ly

 b
el

ow
 

on
 e

ith
er

, t
he

 u
pp

er
 fa

ce
 o

f t
he

 fu
lly

 r
ai

se
d 

lif
t p

la
tfo

rm
, o

r 
th

e 
up

pe
r 

fa
ce

 o
f t

he
 r

am
p 

fu
lly

 d
ep

lo
ye

d 
on

 le
ve

l g
ro

un
d.

 

h.
 

A
 l

oc
ki

ng
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 s
ha

ll 
be

 f
itt

ed
 t

ha
t 

ho
ld

s 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

 
do

or
 in

 th
e 

op
en

 p
os

iti
on

 w
hi

ls
t i

n 
us

e.
 

i. 
A

ll 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 m

us
t b

e 
fit

 fo
r 

pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 
so

un
d.

 
  F

ur
th

er
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
’s

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 i

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 D
is

ab
le

d
 P

er
so

n
s 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

(D
P

T
A

C
) 

w
eb

si
te

 o
p

p
os

it
e 

 
 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 e.
 

T
he

 i
ns

ta
lle

d 
ra

m
p 

do
es

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
an

y 
vi

si
bl

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 a

 
m

ax
im

um
 s

af
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 lo
ad

 o
r 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 B

S
 6

10
9.

 
   f. 

W
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t i
s 

fit
te

d 
to

 th
e 

of
f-

 s
id

e 
ac

ce
ss

 
do

or
 o

f t
he

 v
eh

ic
le

.  
 

  g.
 

T
he

re
 is

 n
ot

 c
le

ar
 h

ea
dr

oo
m

 in
 th

e 
ap

er
tu

re
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l 

th
ird

 o
f 4

8 
in

ch
es

 (
1,

22
0m

m
).

 
     h.

 
N

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f a
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

lo
ck

in
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 to

 h
ol

d 
th

e 
do

or
 

op
en

. 

i. 
D

am
ag

ed
 o

r 
in

se
cu

re
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 o

r 
de

tr
itu

s 
de

po
si

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

tr
ac

ki
ng

 r
ai

ls
 

    w
w

w
.d

p
ta

c.
g

o
v.

u
k 

  
  

Page 76



 

P
ag

e 
52

 
 

11
.2

 
F

IR
E

 E
X

TI
N

G
U

IS
H

E
R

 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 a.

 
C

he
ck

 th
e 

fir
e 

ex
tin

gu
is

he
r 

fo
r 

pr
es

en
ce

: 
• 

th
e 

ex
pi

ry
 d

at
e 

• 
S

ea
l. 

• 
T

yp
e 

– 
w

at
er

, C
O

2 
or

 fo
am

 o
r 

dr
y 

po
w

de
r 

• 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

m
ar

k 
- 

B
S

54
23

 o
r 

E
N

3 
 b.

 
T

he
 

fir
e 

ex
tin

gu
is

he
r 

m
us

t 
be

 
ke

pt
 

in
 

an
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 

po
si

tio
n 

in
si

de
 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 
T

he
 

ex
tin

gu
is

he
r 

m
ay

 
be

 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
of

 v
ie

w
, 

i.e
. 

in
 a

 f
as

te
ne

d 
gl

ov
e 

co
m

pa
rt

m
en

t 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

he
re

 i
s 

a 
cl

ea
r 

si
gn

 o
n 

th
e 

da
sh

bo
ar

d,
 s

ta
tin

g 
th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n.
 

  

R
ea

so
n

 F
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a.
 

A
 fi

re
 e

xt
in

gu
is

he
r 

is
 m

is
si

ng
 o

r:
, 

• 
 o

ut
 o

f d
at

e 
• 

 b
ro

ke
n 

or
 m

is
si

ng
 s

ea
l. 

• 
N

o 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 m

ar
ki

ng
 v

is
ib

le
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

no
n-

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
m

ar
ki

ng
 s

ho
w

n 
 b.

 
N

ot
 f

itt
ed

 i
n 

an
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
po

si
tio

n 
or

 i
ts

 p
os

iti
on

 i
s 

no
t 

cl
ea

rly
 m

ar
ke

d.
  

                

Page 77



 

P
ag

e 
53

 
 

11
.3

 
F

IR
S

T 
A

ID
 K

IT
 

 M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a.
 

C
he

ck
 t

he
 f

irs
t 

ai
d 

ki
t 

fo
r 

pr
es

en
ce

, 
th

e 
ex

pi
ry

 d
at

e 
an

d 
th

e 
se

al
 is

 in
ta

ct
. 

 b.
 

T
he

 fi
rs

t a
id

 k
it 

m
us

t b
e 

ke
pt

 in
 a

n 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 p
os

iti
on

 in
si

de
 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e.

 T
he

 fi
rs

t a
id

 k
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t o

f v
ie

w
, i

.e
. i

n 
a 

fa
st

en
ed

 g
lo

ve
 c

om
pa

rt
m

en
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 c

le
ar

 s
ig

n 
on

 th
e 

da
sh

bo
ar

d,
 s

ta
tin

g 
th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n.
 

  

R
ea

so
n

 F
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a.
 

A
 f

irs
t 

ai
d 

ki
t 

is
 m

is
si

ng
, 

ou
t 

of
 d

at
e,

 b
ro

ke
n 

or
 t

he
 s

ea
l h

as
 

be
en

 b
ro

ke
n.

 
 b.

 
T

he
 f

irs
t 

ai
d 

ki
t 

is
 n

ot
 f

itt
ed

 i
n 

an
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
po

si
tio

n 
or

 i
ts

 
po

si
tio

n 
is

 n
ot

 c
le

ar
ly

 m
ar

ke
d.

  

                  
  

Page 78



 

P
ag

e 
54

 
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
2 

– 
N

O
V

E
L

T
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

S
 (

S
T

R
E

T
C

H
 L

IM
O

U
S

IN
E

S
):

 
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 C
o

nt
en

ts
: 

 S
u

b
-s

ec
ti

o
n 

 
S

u
b

je
ct

 
 12

.1
 

V
eh

ic
le

 Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
N

um
be

r 
(V

IN
) 

 12
.2

 
S

ea
tin

g 
C

ap
ac

ity
 

 12
.3

 
U

nd
ue

 S
tr

es
se

s 
 

 12
.4

 
P

as
se

ng
er

 N
ot

ic
es

 
 

                    

Page 79



 

P
ag

e 
55

 
 

12
.1

 
V

eh
ic

le
 Id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n 
N

u
m

b
er

 (
V

IN
) 

 
M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
 V

eh
ic

le
 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
N

um
be

r 
(V

IN
),

 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
ch

ec
ke

d 
to

 
en

su
re

 it
 c

om
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
• 

F
or

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

fr
om

 
19

98
 

on
w

ar
ds

 
th

e 
V

IN
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

eg
in

 w
ith

 IL
I; 

• 
P

re
 

19
98

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

(n
ot

 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

fo
r 

lic
en

si
ng

 
as

 
pr

iv
at

e 
hi

re
 v

eh
ic

le
s)

 V
IN

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
gi

n 
w

ith
 IL

M
;  

• 
If 

a 
V

IN
 b

eg
in

s 
w

ith
 IL

N
 o

r 
an

yt
hi

ng
 o

th
er

, t
he

n 
th

is
 is

 li
ke

ly
 

to
 b

e 
a 

no
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 (
‘c

ut
-a

nd
-s

hu
t)

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n.

 
  

R
ea

so
n

 F
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

 a.
 

In
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 V
IN

 m
ar

ki
ng

s 
di

sp
la

ye
d 

or
 n

o 
V

IN
 m

ar
ki

ng
s 

pr
es

en
t. 

 
       

                    

Page 80



 

P
ag

e 
56

 
 

12
.2

   
  S

ea
ti

n
g 

C
ap

ac
it

y 
 

M
et

h
o

d 
o

f 
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 

  It 
is

 s
tr

on
gl

y 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 p
rio

r 
to

 t
he

 i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 
no

ve
lty

 v
eh

ic
le

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
to

r 
ch

ec
ks

 th
e 

se
at

in
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
n 

th
e 

V
5C

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

8 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

se
at

s.
  

 

R
ea

so
n

 F
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

  If 
th

e 
V

5C
 s

ta
te

s 
m

or
e 

th
an

 8
 p

as
se

ng
er

s,
 t

he
n 

th
is

 v
eh

ic
le

 
M

U
S

T
 N

O
T

 b
e 

te
st

ed
 o

r 
lic

en
se

d 
as

 a
 P

riv
at

e 
H

ire
 V

eh
ic

le
. 

T
he

 v
eh

ic
le

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 V

O
S

A
 f

or
 l

ic
en

si
ng

 a
s 

a 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

ca
rr

yi
ng

 v
eh

ic
le

 (
P

C
V

).
 

       
                  

Page 81



 

P
ag

e 
57

 
 

12
.3

   
 U

n
d

u
e 

S
tr

es
se

s 
 M

et
h

o
d 

o
f 

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 
  V

eh
ic

le
 i

ns
pe

ct
or

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 u
nd

ue
 s

tr
es

se
s 

ca
us

ed
 

to
 t

he
 s

te
er

in
g,

 b
ra

ke
s 

an
d 

ty
re

s 
du

e 
to

 t
he

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

ei
gh

t 
im

po
se

d 
on

 th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

at
 th

e 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

  

R
ea

so
n

 F
o

r 
R

ej
ec

ti
o

n
 

  T
ol

er
an

ce
s 

an
d 

w
ea

r 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

as
 d

ef
in

ed
 in

 t
he

 V
O

S
A

 C
ar

 &
 

Li
gh

t C
om

m
er

ci
al

 V
eh

ic
le

 T
es

tin
g 

M
an

ua
l a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

 
• 

S
te

er
in

g 
- 

S
ec

tio
n 

2 
• 

B
ra

ke
s 

- 
S

ec
tio

n 
3 

• 
T

yr
es

 -
 S

ec
tio

n 
4 

     
                 

Page 82



 

P
ag

e 
58

 
 

12
.4

   
 P

as
se

n
g

er
 N

ot
ic

es
 

 D
ri

ve
r 

D
ec

la
ra

ti
o

n
 

  
      

P
as

se
n

g
er

 N
o

ti
ce

s 
   

     

Lo
ca

l l
ic

en
si

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
st

ro
ng

ly
 a

dv
is

ed
 to

 o
bt

ai
n 

a 
de

cl
ar

at
io

n,
 fr

om
 th

e 
op

er
at

or
 o

f a
 li

ce
ns

ed
 n

ov
el

ty
 

ve
hi

cl
e,

 th
at

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ith
 s

id
e 

fa
ci

ng
 s

ea
ts

 w
ill

 n
ev

er
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 c
ar

ry
 p

as
se

ng
er

s 
un

de
r 

16
 y

ea
rs

 o
f a

ge
, r

eg
ar

d
le

ss
 

o
f 

w
h

et
h

er
 t

h
e 

ve
h

ic
le

 is
 f

it
te

d
 w

it
h

 o
r 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

se
at

b
el

ts
. 

 i. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, n
ot

ic
es

 fo
rb

id
di

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
in

 s
id

e 
fa

ci
ng

 s
ea

ts
 m

us
t b

e 
di

sp
la

ye
d 

in
 p

ro
m

in
en

t p
os

iti
on

s,
 

i.e
. o

n 
en

tr
y 

to
 th

e 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

co
m

pa
rt

m
en

t a
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

in
si

de
 o

f t
he

 v
eh

ic
le

 o
n 

ei
th

er
 s

id
e 

of
 th

e 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

co
m

pa
rt

m
en

t. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, l
oc

al
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
 m

ay
 r

eq
ui

re
 o

ut
w

ar
d 

fa
ci

ng
 s

ig
ns

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

al
l e

nt
ra

nc
e/

ex
it 

do
or

s 
to

 th
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
co

m
pa

rt
m

en
t. 

ii.
 

F
ur

th
er

 n
ot

ic
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 d

is
pl

ay
ed

 in
si

de
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e,
 w

he
re

 a
ll 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
ca

n 
cl

ea
rly

 r
ea

d 
th

e 
no

tic
e,

 a
dv

is
in

g 
pa

ss
en

ge
rs

 o
f t

he
 m

ax
im

um
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

nd
 a

 w
ar

ni
ng

 to
 p

as
se

ng
er

s 
th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

be
 e

xc
ee

de
d 

th
en

 th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

in
su

re
d.

 
 

Page 83



 

Page 59 
 

APPENDIX ‘A’ 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE  
 
TRAILER INSPECTION SHEET  
 
Plate Number of towing vehicle: …………………….. ………………………….. 
 
Registration number of towing vehicle: …………………………………………. 

 
Registered owner of vehicle: …………………………………………………….. 
 
Manufacturers plate showing chassis number: ………………………………… 
 
Manufacturers plate showing maximum weight: ……………………………….. 
 

Inspection area Description Pass 
( ) 

Fail 
 (!) 

Licence plate Contains details & complies with local licensing 
authorities format 

  

Licence plate Clearly displayed, legible, and securely fixed   
Licence plate Serviceable – not damaged or defaced   
Trailer couplings Check condition & operation and presence of a 

safety breakaway cable. 
  

Tow bar mounting 
brackets 

Check condition and security   

Trailer body Check condition of side and rear tailboards   
Trailer chassis Check condition    
Suspension Check condition and operation   
Wheel bearings Check for excessive free play or roughness in 

bearings 
  

Tonneau cover & 
fittings 

Check for condition   

Wheels and tyres Check  security, condition and wear   
Braking system Operates satisfactorily   
Lighting All obligatory lights work   
Indicators All indicators work   
Reflective triangle Check presence and condition   
Number plate Check condition, security of fitting and 

displayed clearly 
  

Speed restriction 
notice 

Check condition and displayed clearly   

I hereby certify that the above trailer has been inspected and has/has not* been found to be 
roadworthy and suitable to be used as a hackney carriage/private hire* trailer at the time of 
inspection.  
 
Examined by (name) ……………………………………………………………… 
 
Signature ………………………………………………. Date…………………….. 

* Delete as appropriate 

Page 84



 

Page 60 
 

DEFINITION OF MOTOR VEHICLES 
Appendix ‘B’ 

 
 

 
 

Category 
 

Definition 

 
 

M 

 
A motor vehicle with at least four wheels designed and constructed for the 
carriage of passengers. 
 

 
M1 

 
Vehicles designed and constructed for the carriage of passengers and 
comprising no more than eight seats in addition to the drivers seat. 
 

 
 
 

M2 

 
Vehicles designed and constructed for the carriage of passengers and 
comprising  more than eight seats in addition to the drivers seat, and having a 
maximum mass not exceeding five tonnes 
 

 
 
 

M3 

 
Vehicles designed and constructed for the carriage of passengers and 
comprising  more than eight seats in addition to the drivers seat, and having a 
maximum mass exceeding five tonnes 
 

 

Page 85



Page 86



 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 

 

Appendix 4 
25th January 2010 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 D
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
6\
8\
0\
A
I0
00
04
08
6\
V
eh
ic
le
In
sp
ec
tio
ns
R
ep
or
tM
in
or
ch
an
ge
st
oN
at
io
na
lS
ta
nd
ar
ds
su
gg
es
te
db
yO
ffi
ce
rs
A
pp
en
di
x4
0.
do
c/
dg
 

 

N
at
io
na
l I
ns
pe
ct
io
n 
S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

A
 B
es
t P
ra
ct
ic
e 
G
ui
de
  

M
in
or
 C
ha
ng
es
 

 
C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
to
ok
 p
la
ce
 b
et
w
ee
n 
1s
t O
ct
ob
er
 2
00
9 
an
d 
Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
10
. 

 C
o
n
su
lt
ee
 

P
ag
e 
N
u
m
b
er
 
Is
su
e 
 

C
h
an
g
e 

O
ff
ic
er
s 
C
o
m
m
en
ts
 

P
au
l M
ill
s/
Ju
ni
or
 B
ra
ith
w
ai
te
 

an
d 
S
ue
 G
ar
ra
tt 

P
g 
17
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
re
je
ct
io
n:
 

a)
 to
 fa
il 
ve
hi
cl
e 
on
 r
oo
f s
ig
n 
– 

to
 h
ar
sh
 

 A
dd
 “
14
 d
ay
s 
to
 

co
rr
ec
t”
 

  

 
P
g 
17
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
re
je
ct
io
n:
 

d)
 to
 fa
il 
ve
hi
cl
e 
on
 r
oo
f s
ig
n 

no
t b
ei
ng
 il
lu
m
in
at
ed
 –
 to
 h
ar
sh
 

 A
dd
 “
14
 d
ay
s 
to
 

co
rr
ec
t”
 

 

 
P
g 
27
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
R
ej
ec
tio
n:
 

c)
 H
ea
vy
 s
cu
ffi
ng
, a
br
as
io
ns
 o
r 

de
fo
rm
at
io
n 
to
 fr
on
t a
nd
 r
ea
r 

bu
m
pe
r 

 A
dd
 “
14
 d
ay
s 
to
 

co
rr
ec
t”
 

 

 
P
g 
27
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
re
je
ct
io
n 

d)
 M
or
e 
th
an
 8
 s
to
ne
 c
hi
ps
 

vi
si
bl
e 
on
 a
 b
on
ne
t/g
ril
l t
ha
t h
as
 

no
t p
en
et
ra
te
d 
to
 th
e 
m
et
al
 o
r 

m
or
e 
th
an
 4
 s
to
ne
 c
hi
ps
 th
at
 

ha
ve
 p
en
et
ra
te
d 
to
 th
e 
m
et
al
 –
 

to
o 
ha
rs
h 

 R
em

ov
e 
fr
om

 li
st
 

 

 
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
re
je
ct
io
n:
 

e)
 M
or
e 
th
an
 8
 s
to
ne
 c
hi
ps
 o
n 

an
y 
pa
ne
l i
nc
lu
di
ng
 d
oo
r 

ed
ge
s,
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
th
e 
ba
se
 c
oa
t 

ha
s 
no
t b
ee
n 
pe
ne
tr
at
ed
. –
 to
o 

ha
rs
h 

 

 R
em

ov
e 
fr
om

 li
st
 

 

Page 87



 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 

 

Appendix 4 
25th January 2010 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 D
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
6\
8\
0\
A
I0
00
04
08
6\
V
eh
ic
le
In
sp
ec
tio
ns
R
ep
or
tM
in
or
ch
an
ge
st
oN
at
io
na
lS
ta
nd
ar
ds
su
gg
es
te
db
yO
ffi
ce
rs
A
pp
en
di
x4
0.
do
c/
dg
 

C
o
n
su
lt
ee
 

P
ag
e 
N
u
m
b
er
 
Is
su
e 
 

C
h
an
g
e 

O
ff
ic
er
s 
C
o
m
m
en
ts
 

 
P
g 
27
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
R
ej
ec
tio
n 

f)
 M
or
e 
th
an
 4
 s
to
ne
 c
hi
ps
 o
n 

an
y 
pa
ne
l w
he
re
 th
e 
ba
se
 

co
as
t h
as
 b
ee
n 
pe
ne
tr
at
ed
 to
 

th
e 
m
et
al
 a
nd
 is
 u
nt
re
at
ed
 –
 to
o 

ha
rs
h 

 R
em

ov
e 
fr
om

 li
st
 

 

 
P
g 
27
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
R
ej
ec
tio
n:
 

g)
 A
 s
in
gl
e 
de
nt
 o
f m

or
e 
th
an
 

80
m
m
, o
r 
m
or
e 
th
an
 3
 d
en
ts
 o
f 

no
t m

or
e 
th
an
 2
0m

m
 in
 a
ny
 

on
e 
pa
ne
l –
 to
o 
ha
rs
h 

 A
dd
 “
w
ill
 b
e 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 fo
r 

re
ct
ifi
ca
tio
n”
. 

 

 
P
g 
27
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
R
ej
ec
tio
n:
 

h)
 M
or
e 
th
an
 4
 s
cr
at
ch
es
 a
nd
 

or
 a
br
as
io
ns
 o
f m

or
e 
th
an
 

50
m
m
 in
 le
ng
th
 in
 a
ny
 o
ne
 

pa
ne
l p
ro
vi
de
d 
th
at
 th
e 
ba
se
 

co
as
t h
as
 n
ot
 b
ee
n 
pe
ne
tr
at
ed
. 

– 
to
o 
ha
rs
h 

 A
dd
 “
w
ill
 b
e 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 fo
r 

re
ct
ifi
ca
tio
n”
. 

 

 
P
g 
27
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
R
ej
ec
tio
n:
 

i) 
D
ul
l, 
fa
de
d 
pa
in
tw
or
k 
w
hi
ch
 

ha
s 
lo
st
 it
s 
gl
os
s 
fin
is
h 
or
 p
ai
nt
 

m
is
s 
m
at
ch
 to
 a
 p
an
el
(s
) 
to
 

su
ch
 a
n 
ex
te
nt
 th
at
 it
 d
et
ra
ct
s 

fr
om

 th
e 
ov
er
al
l a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e 
of
 

th
e 
ve
hi
cl
e.
 –
 to
o 
ha
rs
h 

 A
dd
 “
w
ill
 b
e 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 fo
r 

re
ct
ifi
ca
tio
n”
. 

 

 
P
g 
27
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
R
ej
ec
tio
n:
 

j) 
E
vi
de
nc
e 
of
 p
oo
r 
re
pa
irs
 a
nd
 

or
 p
ai
nt
 fi
ni
sh
 to
 a
 r
ep
ai
re
d 

pa
ne
l(s
) 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
ru
ns
 a
nd
 

ov
er
sp
ra
y 
to
 a
dj
oi
ni
ng
 

pa
ne
ls
/tr
im
 th
at
 d
et
ra
ct
s 
fr
om

 
th
e 
ov
er
al
l a
pp
ea
ra
nc
e 
of
 th
e 

ve
hi
cl
e.
 –
 to
o 
ha
rs
h 

 A
dd
 “
w
ill
 b
e 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 fo
r 

re
ct
ifi
ca
tio
n”
. 

 

 

Page 88



 

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 

 

Appendix 4 
25th January 2010 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 D
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
6\
8\
0\
A
I0
00
04
08
6\
V
eh
ic
le
In
sp
ec
tio
ns
R
ep
or
tM
in
or
ch
an
ge
st
oN
at
io
na
lS
ta
nd
ar
ds
su
gg
es
te
db
yO
ffi
ce
rs
A
pp
en
di
x4
0.
do
c/
dg
 

 
C
o
n
su
lt
ee
 

P
ag
e 
N
u
m
b
er
 
Is
su
e 
 

C
h
an
g
e 

O
ff
ic
er
s 
C
o
m
m
en
ts
 

 
P
g 
28
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
R
ej
ec
tio
n:
 

b)
 m
is
si
ng
, d
irt
y,
 s
oi
le
d,
 

st
ai
ne
d,
 w
or
n 
or
 in
se
cu
re
 tr
im
, 

ca
rp
et
s,
 h
ea
dl
in
in
g 
an
d 
m
at
s.
 –
 

to
o 
ha
rs
h 

 A
dd
 “
w
ill
 b
e 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 fo
r 

re
ct
ifi
ca
tio
n”
. 

 

 
P
g 
52
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
R
ej
ec
tio
n:
 

a)
 fi
re
 e
xt
in
gu
is
he
r 
is
 m
is
si
ng
 o
r 

ou
t o
f d
at
e,
 b
ro
ke
n 
or
 m
is
si
ng
 

se
al
, n
o 
ap
pr
ov
ed
 m
ar
ki
ng
 

vi
si
bl
e 
or
 o
th
er
 n
on
-a
pp
ro
ve
d 

m
ar
ki
ng
 s
ho
w
n.
 –
 to
o 
ha
rs
h 

 A
dd
 “
14
 d
ay
s 
to
 

co
rr
ec
t”
 

 

 
P
g 
53
 

R
ea
so
n 
fo
r 
R
ej
ec
tio
n 

a)
 A
 fi
rs
t a
id
 k
it 
is
 m
is
si
ng
, o
ut
 

of
 d
at
e,
 b
ro
ke
n 
or
 th
e 
se
al
 h
as
 

be
en
 b
ro
ke
n.
 –
 to
 h
ar
sh
 

 

 A
dd
 “
14
 d
ay
s 
to
 

co
rr
ec
t”
 

 

 
P
g 
55
 

V
eh
ic
le
 Id
en
tif
ic
at
io
n 
N
um

be
r 

V
IN
 

A
dd
: 

b)
 p
ro
du
ce
 a
ll 

do
cu
m
en
ts
 to
 p
ro
ve
 

le
ga
lit
ie
s 
(I
V
A
/S
V
A
) 

A
pp
ro
va
l 

 

  

Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



  
 

LICENSING 
Committee 

 Various Ward Relevance 

25th January 2010 
 

G/Licensing Committee/2010/0125/Additional Taxi Ranks/sgsw11012010 

 

ADDITIONAL TAXI RANKS – EVESHAM ROAD 
 
(Report of the Head of Environment) 
 
1. Summary of Proposals 
 

To consider proposals to provide additional and alternative 
permanent Hackney Carriage Ranks on Evesham Road, Headless 
Cross. 
 
The area of Evesham Road is mostly residential but has a vibrant 
night time economy with a number of licensed premises which are 
very popular.  The current provision of 3 rank spaces has proved to 
be inadequate and Hackney Carriages ranking up illegally has 
added to the existing congestion problems.  The proposals within 
this report change the current arrangements adding more rank 
spaces in safer positions to help reduce those issues, which are 
enforceable by relevant agencies. 

 
 
2. Recommendations 
 

The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 

 
1) the new and alternative taxi ranks, as detailed on the Map 

at appendix 1 of this report, following consultation with 
the Redditch Taxi Association, the West Mercia Police 
and Highways Department be approved and advertised as 
required under the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976:  

 
a) re-siting of the rank on the pavement outside the 

White Hart on Evesham Road to on the road opposite 
the White Hart. 

 
b) a new rank on Evesham Road outside Steps Night 

Club. 
 
subject to which, 
 

2) EITHER 
 

a) authority be delegated to the Director of Environment and 
Planning Services, in consultation with the Chair of the 
Licensing Committee, to finalise the Order where there 
are no objections;  

 

Agenda Item 5Page 93



   

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 

 

All Ward Relevance 

25th January 2010 
 

G/Licensing Committee/2010/100125/Additional Taxi Ranks/sgsw11012010 

 

OR; 
 

b) any objections received following public advertisement 
be reported back to the Licensing Committee for 
consideration. 

 
3. Financial, Legal, Policy, Risk and Climate Change / Carbon 

Management Implications 
 
Financial 
 

3.1 The cost of installing new ranks by the County Council Highways 
Department, to include any necessary signs, road markings and 
road works is:- 

 
3.2 £1500 – This cost is an estimate by the County Council and has not 

been included in the current year’s budget, however, in consultation 
with finance the money can be found from the existing budget. 

 
Legal 
 

3.3 Under Section 63 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, the Borough Council may from time to time 
appoint stands (ranks) for Hackney Carriage for the whole or any 
part of a day in any highway in the district which is maintainable at 
the public expense and, with the consent of the owner, on any land 
in the district which does not form part of a highway so maintainable 
and may from time to time vary the number of Hackney Carriages 
permitted to be at each stand.  

 
3.4 Before appointing any stand or varying the numbers to be at each 

stand, the Council is required to notify the Police for the areas in 
which the stands will be situated. 

 
3.5 The Council is required to give public notice of the proposals by 

advertising in at least one local newspaper and take into 
consideration any objections or representations in respect of such 
proposals which may be made to them in writing within 28 days of 
the first publication of the notice. 

 
3.6 A District Council may not appoint a stand: 
 

a) so as unreasonably to prevent access to any premises; 
 
b) so as to impeded the use of bus stops, or in such a position to 

interfere with access to any station or depot of any passenger 
road transport operations, except with the consent of those 
operators; 

Page 94



   

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 

 

All Ward Relevance 

25th January 2010 
 

G/Licensing Committee/2010/100125/Additional Taxi Ranks/sgsw11012010 

 

 
c) on any highway except with the consent of the Highways 

Authority. 
 

3.7 It is necessary for ranks to be signed and the road marked out 
accordingly. 
Policy 
 

3.8 See legal implications: 
 

Risk 
 

3.9 The current provision of rank space on Evesham Road is for three 
spaces.  This rank is situated on a pavement close to a licensed 
premise “The White Hart”.  There is some doubt as to the legalities 
of this rank; the problem of encouragement by the Local Authorities 
of Hackney Carriages parking on the narrow pavement and issues 
around enforcement for both the Local Authority and West Mercia 
Police. 

 
3.10 There is also major traffic congestion on Evesham Road especially 

during the evening with Hackney Carriages and privately owned 
vehicles parking both sides of the road.  This new proposal will help 
legalise Hackney Carriages ranking up on Evesham Road and 
enable responsible authorities to enforce the new order, discourage 
Hackney Carriages parking on pavements and reduce the risk of 
accidents and road blockages. 
 

 Climate Change / Carbon Management  
 

3.11 The regular maintenance of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
vehicle fleet will ensure that the vehicles are fit for purpose and will 
work towards keeping exhaust emissions to a minimum. 
 
Report 
 

4. Background 
 

4.1 The Hackney Carriage rank currently sited on Evesham Road is on 
the pavement outside the licensed premises “The White Hart”. 

 
4.2 There is known severe congestion on Evesham Road; on one 

occasion an Ambulance could not get through because of residential 
parking and the number of Hackney Carriages that were ranked up. 

 
4.3 Complaints have been received from residents of Evesham Road 

regarding the traffic problems and other related issues. 
 

Page 95



   

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 

 

All Ward Relevance 

25th January 2010 
 

G/Licensing Committee/2010/100125/Additional Taxi Ranks/sgsw11012010 

 

5. Key Issues 
 

5.1 The licensed premises on Evesham Road have a thriving night time 
economy and the lack of rank spaces has been a problem and has 
helped to create congestion issues which are un-enforceable under 
the current rank arrangements. 

 
5.2 A site visit was undertaken with the Leader of the Council, West 

Mercia Police and the Licensing Manager to discuss the issues and 
try to find a solution to the problems. 

 
5.3 The allocation of a proper rank outside Steps night club and the 

moving of the rank off the pavement and onto the road opposite the 
White Hart where the bus stop is situated were felt to be a part 
solution to the problems. 

 
5.4 The siting of the new ranks will be in opposite directions and at bus 

stops which are not used between the hours of 7pm and 7am.   
 
5.5 The Highways Authority will cover the cost of any required 

amendments to the Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO's). 
 
5.6 The Highways Authority have to apply to the Department for 

Transport for special authorisation to have bus/taxi & taxi/loading 
facilities sharing the same carriageway space, as these are non 
standard arrangements.  This shouldn't pose a problem but the 
Highways Authority needs to do this before the start  of formal 
consultation on the Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO's) from their side. 

 
5.7 When the Highways Authority have resolved this issue they will 

forward the relevant information to the Local Authority to enable the 
advertisement of the new ranks.  This is expected to be early in this 
new year. 

 
5.8 It is expected that there will be 6/7 rank spaces available outside 

steps night club and 3 spaces opposite the White Hart.  This will be 
an increase of 6 to 7 spaces on the current arrangements. 

 
5.9 West Mercia Police alongside Civil Parking Enforcement Officers 

and Licensing Officers can then enforce the appropriate legislation 
which in turn may help the heavily congested areas. 

 
5.10 The Redditch Taxi Association, Highways Agency, West Mercia 

Traffic Police and West Mercia Police Officers (beat officer) have 
been consulted on this proposal between 1st October 2009 and 31st 
December 2009 and are in agreement with the suggestions. 

 

Page 96



   

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 

 

All Ward Relevance 

25th January 2010 
 

G/Licensing Committee/2010/100125/Additional Taxi Ranks/sgsw11012010 

 

6. Other Implications 
 

 Asset Management - None 
 

Community Safety - Provision of the new ranks will improve 
the safety of residents and users of the 
licensed premises.  Reducing to a 
minimum the walking distance of those 
enjoying the night time economy of 
Evesham Road whilst also having a 
reduction impact on the congestion 
within the area. 

 
Human Resources - None. 

 
Social Exclusion - Provision of the new ranks will improve 

the service to those using the licensed 
premises including local residents by 
reducing other related issues such as 
congestion, noise and litter etc; by 
getting visitors to the area away quickly. 

 
Environment /  - None. 
Sustainability 

 
7. Lessons Learnt 

 
7.1 The area of Evesham Road has a vibrant night time economy and is 

densely populated.  There are a number of licensed premises in the 
area which are very popular.  The current provision of 3 rank spaces 
has proved to be inadequate for the area and has had an adverse 
impact; Hackney Carriages, when the rank is full are currently 
parking half on and half off the pavements, u – turning in the street 
and generally adding to the already heavily congested areas.  At the 
closing time of these licensed premises the area becomes extremely 
busy and it is essential to get these visitors away from the area 
safely and as quickly as possible to help reduce any noise, litter and 
other related issues.  

 
7.2 The provision of two ranks each facing opposite directions will cut 

down on u-turns; provide adequate transport for visitors leaving the 
area and help ease the congestion problems. 

 
8. Background Papers 

 
Details of previous rank allocation on Evesham Road. 
Email from Redditch Taxi Association 
 

Page 97



   

Licensing 
Committee 

 

 

 

All Ward Relevance 

25th January 2010 
 

G/Licensing Committee/2010/100125/Additional Taxi Ranks/sgsw11012010 

 

9. Consultation 
 

9.1 This report has been prepared in consultation with relevant Borough 
Council Officers. 
 

9.2 Other consultees were Redditch Taxi Association; West Mercia 
Traffic Police, West Mercia local beat officers, the Leader of the 
Council and the Highways Agency. 
 

10. Author of Report 
 
The author of this report is Sue Garratt (Licensing Manager), who 
can be contacted on extension 3032 or (e-mail: 
sue.garratt@redditchbc.gov.uk ) for more information. 
 

11. Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Map of Evesham Road showing proposed new ranks. 
 

Page 98



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
  
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
T
a
xi
 R
a
n
k
 

 

Page 99



Page 100



P
age 101



P
age 102



G: Licensing Committee Work Programme/100113/DS 

LICENSING COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2009/11 
 
28th September 2009  
 

§ Hackney Carriage Fares 
 
2nd November 2009 
 

§ Gambling Act 
§ SIA Authorisation 
§ Licensing Standards 

 
 
14th December 2009 
 

§ Licensing Act – Annual Report 
§ Cardiff Report – Update (James Cooper) 

 
25th January 2010 
 

§ Taxi Inspection Testing 
§ Scheme of Delegation 
§ Taxi Rank Report 

 
26th April 2010 
 

§ Cardiff Report Update 
 
19th July 2010 
 
Licensing Act – 6 Monthly Report 
 
11th October 2010 
 

§ Hackney Carriage Fares 
§ Review of Statement of Licensing Policy for the Licensing Act 2003 

 
 
17th January 2011 
 

§ Licensing Act – Annual Report 
 
 
11th April 2011 
 
 
To Be Allocated To Suitable Available Dates, Dependent On Agenda 
 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 103



Page 104


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Vehicle Safety Inspections / In-House Inspections
	Vehicle Inspections Report - Spot Check Analysis Appendix 1
	Vehicle Inspections Report - VEHICLE ENGINEER costings(1) Appendix 2
	Vehicle Inspections Report - National Inspection Standards Appendix 3
	Vehicle Inspections Report - Minor changes to National Standards suggested by Officers Appendix 4
	Vehicle Inspections Report - Appendix 5

	5 Additional Taxi Ranks - Evesham Road
	Additional Taxi Ranks - Appendix 1-
	App 1,Map of potential additional taxi Rank

	8 Committee Work Programme 2009/11

